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FROBISHER BAY, NORTHWEST TERRITORIES 

MONDAY, NOVEMBER 3, 1980 

MEMBERS PRESENT 

Mr. Appaqaq, Mr. Arlooktoo, Hon. Georg e Braden, Hon. Tom Butters, Mr. Curley, 
Ms. Cournoyea, Mr. Evaluarjuk, Mr. Fraser, Mr. Kilabuk, Hon. Arnold McCallum, 
Mr. Mclaug hlin , Mr. MacQuarrie, Hon. Richard Nerysoo, Mr. Noah, Mr. Patterson , 
Mr. Pudluk, Mr. Sayine, Mr. Sibbeston, Mrs. Sorensen, Hon. Don. Stewart, 
Mr. Tologanak, Hon. James Wah-Shee 

ITEM NO. 1: PRAYER 

---Prayer 

SPEAKER (Hon. Don Stewart): As I indicated on Friday it is my intention to g o  
throug h the orders of the day. I would however, hope, that Members would just 
ask those thing s of an urg ent n ature so that they can continue with the unity 
debate. However, it is up to you. The question of time is in your hands. 

Item 2, oral questions. 

ITEM NO. 2: ORAL QUESTIONS 

Mrs. Sorensen. 

Question 170-80(2): Representation At DIANO Meeting Re NCPC 

MRS. SORENSEN: Thank you, Mr. Speaker. My question is of an urgent nature. 
It is directed to the Minister of energ y, the Hon. Mr. Nerysoo, but I see he is 
not here just n ow so I will direct it to the l eader of the elected Executive, 
Mr. Braden . The standing committee on Indian affairs and northern development 
will be meeting on November 4th, which is tomorrow, to discuss the Northern 
Canada Power Commission and its service to northerners. Mr. Braden, in view 
of the fact that this Legislature has unanimously adopted a position with 
respect to the disposal of NCPC and the creation of a new territorial power 
commission, I wonder if you could assure myself and fellow Members that there 
will be territorial g overnment representation at that November 4th hearing to 
present this Legislature's point of view. 

MR. SPEAKER: Mr. Minister, Hon. Mr. Braden. 

Return To Question 170-80(2): Representation At DIANO Meeting Re NCPC 

HON. GEORGE BRADEN: Thank you very much, Mr. Speaker. In reply for my 
colleague, who is absent right now, I can indicate very briefly that the 
government will be presenting the motion throug h our interg overnmental affairs 
department in Ottawa to the standing committee. I am sorry I cannot provide 
any more detail right now. 

MR. SPEAKER: Thank you. Oral questions. Mr. Noah. 

Question 171-80(2): Keewatin Students In Frobisher Bay 

MR. NOAH: (Translation) Mr. Speaker, this is directed to the Minister of 
Education who can respond to this concerning the Keewatin students in Frobisher 
Bay. If they could be able to be sometime in this summer, could you please 
inform the Assembly on that? Thank you. 
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MR. SPEAKER: Hon. Mr. Butters. 

HON. TOM BUTTERS: Mr. Speaker, I will take the question as notice and file a 
reply. 

MR. SPEAKER: Thank you. Oral questions, Mr. Curley. 

Question 17 2-80(2): Quota System For Outpost Camps 

MR. CURLEY: Mr. Speaker, I have an urgent question to the Minister of Renewable 
Resources. Since the last Assembly urged the Minister to set up a quota 
system for outpost camps during the winter session, has the Minister any plans 
now to enforce the wish of the House as expressed during the winter session 
0f this year? 

MR. SPEAKER: Mr. Minister, Hon. Mr. Nerysoo. 

Return To Question 172-80(2): Quota System For Outpost Camps 

HON. RICHARD NERYSOO: Yes. At present I 
n�mber of things that were to take place. 
already by outpost camps and hopefully we 
coming year. 

am working on it because there were a 
Some issues have been brought up 

will have that resolved before the 

MR. SPEAKER: Oral questions. Mr. Arlooktoo. 

9uestion 173-80(2): Soapstone On Baffin Island 

MR. ARLOOKTOO: (Translation) Mr. Speaker, I do not know which Minister I will 
Jirect this to. The Inuit people are waiting for -- the Quebec people are 
corning up to Baffin Island to get soapstone and I would like to be informed 
who should be able to answer this question. 

MR. SPEAKER: The Hon. Minister, Mr. Braden. 

HON. GEORGE BRADEN: Thank you very much, Mr. Speaker. I guess I am the 
Minister responsible for soapstone. I will have to take that question as notice 
and I will report back for my hon. colleague as soon as possible. 

MR. SPEAKER: Oral questions. 

Item 3, written questions and returns. 

ITEM NO. 3: QUESTIONS AND RETURNS 

Ms. Cou rnoyea. 

Question 174-80(2): Ordinances Regarding Incorporated Communities 

MS. COURNOYEA: A question to the Minister of Local Government in regard to 
community government ordinance; an ordinance respecting community government, 
hamlet port; an ordinance respecting community government, incorporated 
communities, community government structures; difference between corporated 
communities and settlements. 

I would like to seek clarification on what is going on regarding these 
ordinances. These proposed ordinances are being discussed by the Department 
of Local Government with local settlement councils within the last few months. 
Tne preliminary reactions I have had from these settlement councils who have 
considered it is, there is little, if anything, in that ordinance for the 
communities in the way of real power; they see it rather as a solidification of 
power at the Yellowknife level. 
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From my reading of this leg islation I would agree and I think it is inconsistent 
with the aspirations of communities for devolution. In addition I understand 
from the settlement council of Sachs Harbour that the Department of Local 
Government is pressing that community to beg in the process of incorporation as 
laid out in this draft ordinance. This is even before that ordinance has been 
considered by the council and before it is law. 

There has been an expression of concern from within the communities of the 
Western Arctic on that draft ordinance and the actions of Local Government to 
press for implementation before leg islation is even accepted or passed. The 
communities feel that these actions might well be not so subtle attempts to 
undermine their desire for real decision making and control as contemplated by 
their proposed Western Arctic reg ional municipality. Therefore I have the 
following questions to the Minister of Local Government. 

(l) Is he aware or did he instruct his officials in Local Government to carry 
out the above mentioned activities? 
(2) Does the Minister view the incorporated ordinance as a substitute for 
effective reg ional g overnment, in particular the proposed Western Arctic 
regional municipality? 
(3) Why at this time is the Department of Local Government advocating this 
draft leg islation, which in my opinion is inconsistent with the statement 
expressed with the Western Arctic communities for a form of reg ional g overnment, 
in particular the Western Arctic municipalities? 

MR. SPEAKER: Thank you, Ms. Cournoyea. That is once. That is number one. 
Mr. Braden. 

HON. GEORGE BRADEN: Mr. Speaker, I would just like to have my memory refreshed 
on how written questions are to be put to this House. I think the hon. Member 
has as I understand it stated a number of opinions and arguments and requests 
and I would like you to let us know how questions should be put. 

MR. SPEAKER: Hon. Minister, you are absolutely correct. It is very difficult 
to hear, until after the words have been spoken to know whether or not it is 
by way of expl anation or by way of arg ument. That is why I have warned the 
Member that that was once and the question should be preceded only by a note 
of explanation required but not certainly a statement nor by arg uments. Are 
there any further written questions? Mr. Kilabuk. 

Question 175-80(2): Whaling In The N. W. T. 

MR. KILABUK: (Translation) Mr. Speaker, from my past experience this was a 
request concerning the whaling in the Northwest Territories. Is it prohibited 
in the Northwest Territories? Can some of the communities g et whales? Perhaps 
I can g et an answer to this maybe not just now but later on. 

MR. SPEAKER: Thank you, Mr. Kilabuk. Any further 1�ritten questions? 
Mr. Kilabuk. 

Question 176-80(2): Mayor's Wages In Communities 

MR. KILABUK: (Translation) Mr. Speaker, I think you will recall those questions 
concerning �he mayors in the communities. There are mayors in some communities. I do not think that the mayors in the communities are earning enoug h wag es yet and the communities that have mayors wanted to know what has been happening because they have been requested to start earning wag es. 

MR. SPEAKER: Thank you, Mr. Kilabuk. Ag ain, it is all right to g ive an 
explanation but not your opinion relative to the question. So in the future 
just try and keep your remarks to an explanation plus your question, not your 
opinion. Any further written questions? Returns? The Hon. Mr. Butters. 

0 
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Return To Question 119-80(2): Driver's Licence Restricted To Frobisher Bay 

HON. TOM BUTTERS: Mr. !Speaker, I have three brief returns. Question 119-80(2) 
asked by Mr. Patterson �n October 23rd, related to driver's licences restricted 
to Frobisher Bay. 

My reply is that it is only possible to obtain a driver's licence restricted to 
the Northwest Territories in Frobisher Bay and other centres outside of 
Yellowknife, Inuvik and western urban centres due to the fact that in order to 
maintain a sufficiently high standard of test which will ensure that our licence 
holders are competent to drive under the complex driving conditions found in 
other jurisdictions and have our driver's licences accepted by the other 
jurisdictions, sufficient roads, traffic control devices and traffic volumes are 
a prerequisite to providing road tests. It is not possible to provide a 
comprehensive driver road test without these requirements. 

Return To Question 148-80(2): Inspection Of Kamotig Inn In Frobisher Bay 

The second return is to written Question 148-80(2) , also asked by the hon. Member 
for Frobisher Bay regarding the inspection of Kamotiq Inn, Frobisher Bay. 

The inspection of an establishment by a liquor inspector prior to issuance of a 
liquor licence is not mandatory but the Liquor Licensing Board may direct 
inspection take place. The Kamotiq Inn was inspected by representatives of the 
health and fire departments. The appointed liquor inspector was on annual 
leave and not available to inspect. The licence was in the possession of the 
representative of the Liquor Control System who was instructed to pass the 
licence to the applicant if no obvious discrepancies were evident. Insp�ttion 
of the premises by a liquor inspector before opening would be limited to the 
items covered by health, fire and building inspections. 

Return To Question 118-80(2): Education Facilities In Gjoa Haven 

lne last _return, sir, is to written Question 118-80(2) , asked by the hon. Member 
for the Central Arctic regarding educational facilities in Gjoa Haven. 

On October 23rd, 1980, the architect along with an official from the Department 
of Education and the Department of Public Works, visited Gjoa Haven to review 
with the education committee and the teaching staff, plans for the completion of 
the mezzanine and renovations to the main floor. The project is on schedule 
for completion by the beginning of the 1981-82 school year. This project will 
provide the school with three additional classrooms in the presently 
undeveloped mezzanine area. 

MR. SPEAKER: Thank you. Are there any further returns? Hon. Mr. Nerysoo. 

Further Return To Question 90-80(2): Massive Slaughter Of Caribou Herd 

HON. RICHARD NERYSOO: Yes, Mr. Speaker, this is in reply to a question asked by 
Mrs. Sorensen on June 20th, 1980, with regard to the Beverly caribou herd. 

1he estimated number of caribou killed from the Beverly caribou herd in 
Saskatchewan during the winter of 197 9-80 was over 12, 000. The Saskatchewan kil l 
in previous years averaged about 3000. Figures were obtained from monthly inter­
views with each hunter in Stony Rapids but in other communities the harvest was 
estimated by conservation officers. One reason for the high Saskatchewan kill 
was that an unusually large number of hunters had access to the caribou. This 
situation developed because caribou moved further south than in previous years 
and because low snowfall permitted hunters to drive to the animals. The numbers 
of caribou shot in the Northwest Territories and Manitoba from the Beverly herd 
were 2100 dnd 2500 respectively. The total 1979-80 kill was, including losses 
through crippling, therefore 20, 000. 

I was scheduled to have a meeting with the ministers of renewable resources of 
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Manitoba and Saskatchewan as well as the federal Ministers of DIANO and the 
E nvironment. It was to be at this forum that the Saskatchewan kill would have 
been discussed. The meeting is still planned but the federal Ministers' 
involvement with the constitutional conference and the budget have delayed it. 

MR. SPE AKE R: Thank you. Any further returns? Mr. Braden. 

HON. GE ORGE BRADEN: There are further returns to be provided by the E x ecutive 
at this time, Mr. Speaker, so is it possible for me to continue? 

MR. SPEAKER: I am sorry, Mr. Braden, I could not hear you. Could you move 
closer to your mike? 

HO�. GEORGE BRADEN: There are further returns to be presented by the 
E x ecutive at this time. Could we continue please? 

�R. SPEAKER: I had asked for returns and I did not see any motions. I am sorry. 
Please proceed. 

Return To Question 42-80(2): Proposed Polaris Mine 

hON. GE ORGE BRADEN: Thank you very much, sir. J have a number of returns, 
Mr. Speaker. I will start with return to Question 42-80(2), and it was asked 
by Mr. Patterson on June 13th at Baker Lake. It concerns the proposed Polaris 
Mine and the socio-economic agreement. 

The following methodology to be used in negotiating a socio-economic agreement 
has been approved by the resource development committee. The resource 
aevelopment committee, headquarters departments and regions will review 
Cominco's socio-economic statement and develop a shortfall statement. The 
shortfall statement and basic elements/issues will be submitted to the RDC for 
approval. Following RDC approval the statement will be presented to Cominco. 
The resource development review package currently being finalized will be 
presented to the company and ex plained. Key government and industry 
representatives involved in the action plan will be identified. 

Cominco will develop the action plan for submission to the Government of the 
Northwest Territories for approval. Consultation with communities and regional 
organizations will occur at this stage. When mutual agreement is reached a letter 
of agreement will be signed and attached to the action plan. Participants in 
the action plan developed will be Cominco and the Government of the Northwest 
Territories. There will be consultation with the following organizations: 
Baffin Region Inuit Association, Keewatin Inuit Association, Kitikmeot Inuit 
Association, the Baffin Regional Council, communities and the Department of 
Indian Affairs and Northern Development. 

Return To Question 83 -80(2): Consideration Of Transferring STEP Program 

The next return I have, Mr. Speaker, is to Question 83-80(2), which was asked 
by Mrs. Sorensen on June 18th, 1980, at Baker Lake. It is consideration of 
transferring the STEP program or the Subsidized Term E mployment Program. 

The administration after review does not believe the Subsidized Term E mployment 
Program should be a program of any one department; rather it should continue 
to function on a multidepartmental basis, co-ordinated at the regional level by 
the regional director with the participation, involvement, of Social Services, 
E conomic Development and Tourism, Local Government and others as required. 

5TEP funds were decentralized to regional control in the l-980-81 fiscal year. 
The Department of Social Services does not have business management field staff 
available to monitor and advise projects adequately to ensure a smooth cash flow 
for well managed projects. There would not seem to be much advantage in 
transferring the funds from E conomic Development to Social Services. 

0 
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R eturn To Question 169-80(2): Vegetable Garden In Arctic Bay 

I have a further reply, Mr. Speaker, to Question 169-80(2) , which was asked by 
my hon. colleague Mr. Pudluk and it concerns the windmill and vegetable garden 
at Arctic Bay. 

The office of energy conservation sent information to the office of the Member 
for the High Arctic and the hamlet of Arctic Bay earlier this year regarding 
the conservation and renewable energy development and demonstration program. 
The office of energy conservation offered to assist the hamlet in preparing 
their proposal for assistance under this program but has not yet heard anything 
further from them since May of this year. The Department of Economic Development 
and Tourism provided information to Mr. Pudluk in June regarding greenhouses in 
the North and offered to make available to the hamlet of Arctic Bay the data 
and records from the department's greenhouse pilot projects which operated in 
Frobisher Bay and Sanikiluaq. To date the department has not heard from Arctic 
Bay as to whether they wish to proceed with their greenhouse proposal. 

Return To Question 160-80(2): Legislation R e  Tendering O n  Projects 

My fourth return, Mr. Speaker, is in reply to oral Question 160-80(2) , which 
was asked by the hon. Mr. William Noah on October 28, 1980, which concerns 
legislation re tendering on government projects. The reply reads as follows: 

While legislation is not in place at this time, there are two papers being 
developed that deal specifically with this issue. The Departments of Economic 
Development, Local Government, Public Works, Social Services, and the Housing 
Corporation are jointly preparing a purchasing policy which is aimed at 
providin g preferential treatmen t to n orthern firms relative to supply and 
construction contracts as well as professional and special technical support 
contracts. 

This policy will define northern businesses, northern materials, and categorize 
contract amounts to ensure that, whenever it can be shown that northern ex pertise 
is available within a competitive range and can perform the required duties 
without adversely affecting the supply of local goods and labour, a northern 
entrepreneur will be given priority over other contractors. 

MR. CURLEY: Hear, hear! 

HON. GEORGE BRADEN: In a similar context, a socio-economic review process is 
being developed that monitors the activities of non-renewable resource 
developers and then determines where and when these developments can and should 
make use of existing northern ex pertise, whether it be labour or the provision 
of goods and services. Again, this process involves a number of departments 
all of which have a vested interest in en suring northern development benefits 
accrue to northern residents and communities. 

Return To Question 162-80(2): Terms Of Contract 

My final return, Mr. Speaker is a reply to written Question 162-80(2) , aske� 
by the hon. Bob MacQuarrie on October 28, 1980, and it concerns the terms of 
contracts with two advisers on mineral and petroleum resource development. The 
return reads as follows, Mr. Speaker: 

The terms of the contracts for the two ministerial advisers on mineral and 
petroleum resources include: 

(l) providing advice to the Minister on the developmen t  of major resource 
development policies; 
(2) providing advice to the resource development committee on the impact on the 
resource industry of proposed Government of the Northwest Territories policies; 
(3) providing, if I may say so, sir, a much needed liaison between the Minister 
and industry organizations; 
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(4) bringing the Minister's attention to major problem areas identified by the 
northern mining industry; and 
(5) acting as a consultant to the department in the development of departmental 
positions relating to resource development. 

As yet, Mr. Speaker, no work has been directly assigned to the advisers. However 
in the very near future, several assignments are scheduled. These are: 

(l) reviewing the proposed guidelines and review process for resource development; 
.(2) assisting in identifying other ways and means of assuring more direct 
benefits to northerners; 
(3) identifying ways and means by which government and industry can better foster 
each other's goals; and 
(4) assessing the potential impact of the international biological projects 
program on future development. Thank you very much, Mr. Speaker. 

MR. SPEAKER: Thank you, Mr. Minister. Further returns, Mr. Wah-Shee. 

Return To Question 144-80(2) : Permanent Bridge For Little Buffalo River 

HON. JAMES WAH-SHEE :  Mr. Speaker, I have a return for a question asked by 
Mr. Sayine on October 27th, regarding a bridge at Little Buffalo River. 

Construction of a permanent bridge for the Fort Resolution highway crossing 
of the Little Buffalo River has been recommended to the E xecutive subcommittee 
on priorities and planning for construction in 1984. Thank you. 

MR. SPEAKER: Thank you. Any further returns, Hon. Mr. McCallum? 

HON. ARNOLD McCALLUM: Mr. Speaker, I would ask your indulgence to provide a 
piece of information I think that would be of interest to the Members from the 
Keewatin South and the Keewatin North regarding the provision of a doctor in 
that area. It is not legitimately a return, but I wonder if I may make a 
statement regarding that as a point of privilege. 

MR. SPEAKER: It is certainly not a point of privilege, but go ahead. 

Doctor For Keewatin 

HON. ARNOLD McCALLUM: Mr. Speaker, I do not want to argue with you. Mr. Speaker, 
officials from the Department of Health of the Government of the Northwest 
Territories and Health and Welfare Canada have reached a verbal agreement 
whereby Health and Welfare Canada will recruit a physician to be resident in 
Rankin Inlet to serve the Keewatin. The Government of the Northwest Territories 
will provide accommodation at a subsidized rate, it will be providing a fee for 
service with a guaranteed minimum that would have to be negotiated and Health 
and Welfare Canada will provfde travel, relocation costs, various fringe benefits 
that that government provides. I t  will make the contractual arrangements on 
a per diem basis for days spent in communities other than Rankin Inlet, the air 
transportation and accommodation while the physician is in other communities 
other than Rankin Inlet and it will provide capital funds to erect or renovate 
a building suitable as a clinic outside the nursing station. 

There are other details to be arranged, Mr. Speaker, but Health and Welfare are 
now approaching in conjunction with the Government of the Northwest Territories 
Department of Health, the University of Manitoba to inquire about the relocation 
of a physician from Churchill. I t  may be necessary to take advantage of a house 
that may be set aside for a while by the housing association of Rankin I nlet 
for this particular doctor, but we expect that we would be able to accommodate 
the doctor and we look forward to this physician being in the Keewatin in the 
very near future. 

---Applause 
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MR. SPEAKER: Thank you, Mr. McCallum. I think all of the time that I have 
been in the House it is the first time I saw the rule with regard to returns 
broken but there is a first for everything. Congratulations, Mr. McCallum. 
Now, speaking of returns to questions, are there any further? No further 
returns. 

Item 4, petitions. No petitions. 

Item 5, tabling of documents. 

ITEM NO. 5: TABLING OF DOCUMENTS 

Mr. MacQuarrie. 

MR. MacQUARRIE: Thank you, Mr. Speaker. I would like to table Tabled Document 
22-80(2), a letter from Allan McDonald who is the chairman of the NWTTA local 
at Sir John Franklin High School to Mr. Chris Reid who is the president of the 
Northwest Territories Teachers' Association, which outlines the extent of 
financial difficulties at Sir John Franklin High School. 

MR. SPEAKER: Thank you. Are there any further tabled documents? Mr. Nerysoo. 

HON. RICHARD NERYSOO: Yes, Mr. Speaker, I would like to table the following 
documents: 

Tabled Document 23-80(2), Fourth Annual Report, Science Advisory Board of the 
Northwest Territories. 
Tabled Document 24-80(2), Uranium Exploration in the Northwest Territories, 
Science Advisory Board of the Northwest Territories. 
Tabled Document 25-80(2), Environmental Assessment Request, Science Advisory 
Board of the Northwest Territories. 
Tabled Document 26-80(2), Recommendation to Develop a Medical Research Unit, 
Science Advisory Board of the Northwest Territories. 
Tabled Document 27-80(2), Fish, Fur and Game in the Northwest Territories, 
Science Advisory Board of the Northwest Territories. Further, as Minister 
representing the Science Advisory Board, I would like to invite comment on the 
items raised in this document. 
Tabled Document 28-80(2), A Summary of Electricity and Petroleum Product 
Consumption, Science Advisory Board of the Northwest Territories. 

MR. SPEAKER: Thank you. Are there any further tabled documents? 

Item 6, reports of standing and special committees. Item 7,  notices of motion. 

ITEM NO. 7 :  NOTICES OF MOTION 

Mr. MacQua rri e. 

Notice Of Motion 54-80(2): Amendments To Mining Safety Ordinance 

MR. MacQUARRIE: Thank you, Mr. Speaker. I wish to give notice that on Wednesday, 
November the 5th, I will move, seconded by the hon. Member from Yellowknife South, 
that the Minister responsible for the Mining Safety Ordinance prepare to make 
suitable amendments to that ordinance and that he announce to those unions and 
companies involved in mining in the Northwest Territories his intention to do so 
and that he provide them with suitable opportunity to recommend changes. 

MR. SPEAKER: Notices of motion. No further notices of motion. Item 8, motions. 

ITEM NO. 8: MOTIONS 

Mr. Curley, Motion 44-80(2) , do you wish to proceed today with it? 

MR. CURLEY: Not at this time, Mr. Speaker. 
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MR. SPEAKER: Mr. F raser, Motion 46-80(2), do you wish to proceed at this 
time? 

MR. FRASER: I wi 11 stand it down at this time, Mr. Speaker. 

MR. SPEAKER: Thank you. Mr. Pudluk, Motion 47 -80(2)? 

MR. PUDLUK: Mr. Speaker, not at this time. 

MR. SPEAKER: Mrs. Sorensen, Motion 49-80(2) ? 

MRS. SORENSEN: Mr. Speaker, I will stand it d own today but I feel I must bring 
it forth tomorrow. 

MR. SPEAKER: Mr. Patterson, Motion 50-80(2)? 

MR. PATTERSON: Mr. Speaker, I will stand this motion down until after the 
unity committee's d ebate is finished.  

MR. SPEAKER: Thank you. Mr. Noah, Motion 51-80(2) . Do you wish to proceed 
with it now or would you set it aside? 

MR. NOAH: (Translation) I will stand it aside for now. 

MR. SPEAKER: Thank you. We will go on to Item 9, introduction of bills for 
first reading. 

Item 10, second reading of bills. There are no bills for second reading. 

Item 11, consideration in committee of the whole of bills, recommendations to 
the Legislative Assembly and other matters. 

ITEM NO. 11: CONSIDERATION IN COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE OF BILLS, RECOMMENDATIONS 
TO THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY AND OTHER MATTERS 

We will resolve into committee of the whole to study the paper on unity, with 
Mr. Fraser in the chair. 

---Legislative Assembly resolved into committee of the whole for consid eration 
of Tabled Document 16-80(2) : Report of the Special Committee on Unity, with 
Mr. Fraser in the chair. 

PROCEEDINGS IN COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE TO CONSIDER TABLED DOCUMENT 16-80(2) : 
REPORT OF THE SPECIAL COMMITTEE ON UNITY 

THE CHAIRMAN (Mr. Fraser): I call the meeting to order and continue with the 
unity committee report. I think when we adjourned on Saturday we still had 
to hear from the Dene Nation, or were we through with them? What is the wish 
of the Members? Mr. Butters. 

HON. TOM BUTTERS: Mr. Chairman, I think that the one group of witnesses who 
were to come back and speak with us again is the Dene Nation and I believe 
they are in the House today. 

THE CHAIRMAN (Mr. Fraser) : Is it your wish that we bring back the Dene Nation 
for any questions? 

---Agreed 

THE CHAIRMAN (Mr. Fraser): Sergeant-at-Arms, see that the witnesses from the 
Dene Nation are seated at the witness table. Thank you very much. We have the 
Dene Nation at the witness table, Mr. Frank T'Seleie and Mr. John T'Seleie. 
understand that some of the Members still had questions and we will open the 
floor now to questions of the Members. Have you any comment to be made after 
hearing the reply made by ITC on Saturday if you were here? They had a go at 
the questions again. Have you any opening comments before we go into a question 
period? Mr. T'Seleie. () 
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MR. FRANK T ' S ELEIE: Yes, Mr. Chairman. I would turn the mike over to 
J ohn T'S eleie to make an open in g statement. 

MR. J OHN T'SELEIE: Thank you, Mr . Chairman . We want to try an d clarify 
statemen ts that wer e made on Friday, I believe it was. I want to thank the 
Assembly for al lowing us this time. I thin k on Friday some of you foun d our 
postures to be somewhat undiplomatic . Well, I have to say it is a r esult of 
our experience. I want to n ow try and clarify or make more c lear for you the 
Dene Nation's position on this debate. 

Dene And Inuit L ive Side By Side 

Tradition ally the Dene an d the In uit have always lived side by side. There has 
been very little interference and this was basic al ly the resul t of a lifestyl e, 
a c er tain kin d of r elationship to the land. While we contin ue to believe that 
this is still the c ase with the vast majority of Inuit and we know it to be 
the c ase with the Dene, we recognize that modern influenc es have, to a lar g e  
ex tent, chang ed c ertain thin g s  for both the Inuit and the Dene. However , we 
share the same modern strug g les with Inuit people and it is because we share these 
strugg les that we suppor t the creation of Nunavut in principl e. There is no 
question of our su pport for the rig ht of the In uit to set up their own g overn ment, 
but because our futures are inseparable and because we share many similar 
characteristic s as a people, our support must be seen as mutual . By this we 
mean that t h is Assembly must suppor t also the Dene Nation's position for the 
c reation of Denendeh in th e western par t of the Northwest Terr itories. 
Mr. Chairman, I have some other points that I want to bring out, but I think they 
wil l c ome out during the questions. 

T H E  CHAIRMAN ( Mr. F raser ) :  Thank you, Mr. T'Seleie. Any further r e'Tiarks? 
Mr .  Fran k T'Seleie. 

MR. FRANK T ' S EL E IE :  Yes, Mr. Chairman, I would like at this time to say that we 
have had a meetin g with ITC over the weekend an d have come to some understanding . 
I would like on behalf of ITC and the Dene Nation to r elease a joint statement. 

J oint S tatement Of ITC And Dene Nation 

( 1) ITC and the Dene Nation support the division of the ex isting Nor thwest 
Territories into Nunavut and Denendeh. 
( 2) ITC and the Dene Nation express their hope that the c r eation of Nunavut and 
th e c reation of Denendeh will proceed with the active suppor t and assistance 
of the Northwest Territories L eg islative Assembly. S upport and assistanc e 
shoul d commenc e with the appropriate r esolutions by the Nor thwest Ter ritories 
L eg islative Assembl y on the principl e and pr ocesses of division. 
( 3) ITC and the Dene Nation r ecognize that forms of public g overnment may need to 
differ in some r espects between Nunavut and Denendeh. 
(4) ITC and the Dene Nation also r ecog nize that the people of Nunavut and the 
people of Den endeh may seek somewhat different powers from the Government of 
Canada for the g overnment of Nunavut and the g overnment of Denendeh. ITC and 
the Dene Nation join, however, in r equesting the Government of Canada to be 
partic ularly flexible in negoti ating the demands of the peopl e of Nunavut and 
the people of Denendeh for sui table powers over r esourc e development and 
r esourc e  control. 
( 5) ITC and the Dene Nation state their determination to work co-operatively 
to resolve the question of a boundar y between Nunavut and Denendeh. ITC and 
th e Dene Nation r ecognize that the boundar y questi on will necessarily involve 
con sultati on wi th the Government of Canada .  ITC and the Dene Nation believe 
th at the resolution of the boundary question would be assisted by the appointment 
of a minister of Nunavut and a minister of U enendeh to the ex i sting Ex ecutive 
Commi ttee of the Northwest Territories Legislative Assembly. 
( 6) L astly, ITC and the Den e Nation assert that aboriginal rights issues are 
iss ues to be dealt with by the representatives of the aboriginal peoples an d 
by the Government of Canada. 

Ti1 E CHAIRMAN ( Mr .  F raser ) :  Thank you, Mr . T'S el eie. 

---Applause 
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You have heard the openin g remarks an d commen ts from the Den e Nation. I f  we 
want to go into a question period now with the Dene Nation, there are some 
further questions I think that some of the Members wan ted to ask. I take it 
then there will be n o  more q uestions. Mr. Noah. 

Position Of Support For ITC Unchan ged 

MR. NOAH: (Translation) Mr. Chai rman, thank you. If I understood correctly it 
seems to me that the Dene Nation on Friday were not in support of the creation 
of Nunavut as a government. Is this correct to m y  understanding? · 

THE CHAIRMAN (Mr. Fraser): Thank you, Mr. Noah. Mr. T'Seleie. 

MR. FRANK T'SE LEI E: I do not think our position regarding support for I TC 
creating its own government has changed. We support it in principle. 

THE CHAIRMAN (Mr. F raser} : Than k you, Mr. T 'Seleie. Does that answer your 
question, Mr. Noah? 

MR. NOAH: (Tran slation) Yes, that is answered. 

THE CHAIRMAN (Mr. F raser): Thank you, Mr. Noah. Mrs. Sorensen. 

MRS . SORE NSEN : Thank you , Mr. Ch a i rm an . Mr. T ' Se 1 e i e , I wonder i f you co u 1 d 
outline and el aborate a bit further on the principles of the government that 
you call Denendeh. 

THE CHAIRMAN (Mr. F raser): Thank you, Mrs. Sorensen. Mr. T'Seleie. 

MR. JOHN T'SELE IE :  I do not know how much detail you want on that. In the 
Western Arctic the Dene are still the majority an d I think the principles extend 
from there. 

THE CHAIRMAN (Mr. Fraser): Mrs. Sorensen. 

MRS. SORENSEN: would be specifically interested in timing. I would be 
interested in the boundaries that you propose, the type of government, whether 
it would be public government or private government, that kind of thing. 

THE CHAIRMAN (Mr. F raser): Thank you, Mrs. Sorensen. Mr. T'Sel eie. 

MR. F RANK T'SE LEIE : The Dene Nation has been ready to negotiate for quite a 
few years. As far as public and private governm ent is concerned, I think that 
I do not understand that because I always thought that government was public. 

THE CHAIRMAN (Mr. F raser): Thank you, Mr. T'Seleie. Mrs. Sorensen. 

MRS. SORE NSEN: Mr. T'Seleie, do you have a paper that outlines what your 
g overnmen t is and how it is to be set up? Has it been released? 

THE CHAIRMAN (Mr. F raser): Thank you, Mrs. Sorensen. Mr. T'Seleie. 

MR. JOHN T ' SE LEI E :  I am sorry. I did not catch the whole question. Would you 
repeat it, please? 

THE CHAIRMAN (Mr. Fraser): Mrs. Sorensen. 

Document On Denendeh As A Government 

MRS. SORENSEN: I asked, Mr. T'Seleie, whether you had a document or a paper that 
outlines what Denendeh is as a governmen t and how it would be set up. Has that 
paper been released, if there is such a document? 

THE CHAIRMAN (Mr. F raser): Thank you, Mrs. Sorensen. Mr. T'Seleie. 

() 
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M R .  JOHN T'SELEIE: Yes, th ere has been. Different statements have been r eleased 
over the years; statements of basic principles and statements of things that 
have to do with consensus. The decision making in our communiti es with our 
people takes a long time because we try to work in such a way that everybody has 
a say in what is going on. I am not cl ear on why you are asking these 
questions. 

THE CHAIRMAN (Mr . Fraser) :  Thank you, Mr . T'Seleie. Mrs. Sorensen. 

MRS. SORENSEN: When you went before the unity committee, did you present that 
document to the uni ty committee? 

THE CHAIRMAN ( Mr .  Fraser ) :  Mr. T' Seleie. 

N R. J OH N  T'SELEIE: No. 

THE CHAIRMAN (Mr . Fraser ) :  Thank you, Mr . T'Seleie. Mr . MacQuar rie. 

MR. MacQUARRIE: Th ank you, Mr. Chairman. Mr . T'Seleie, if th is Assembly were 
to establish a constitulii onal devel opment committee as i s  r ecommended by the 
special committee on unity, would th e Dene Nation be wi lling to par ticipate with 
that committee to try to work out principles for the development of a public 
government in the Western Arctic? 

THE CHAIRMAN (Mr . Fr aser ) :  Thank you, Mr . MacQuarrie. Mr. T'Seleie. 

MR. FRANK T'SELEIE: Yes, we would be willing to be part of such a committee 
if it is establish ed. 

THE CHAIRMAN ( Mr .  F raser ) :  Thank you, Mr . T'Seleie. A ny further questions? 
Mr .  Patterson. 

MR. PA TTERSON: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Do I take it from discussions that 
you have had this week end with ITC that you now feel that the border question, 
which you earlier said was a problem, coul d likely be solved by discussions 
between the Inuit and the Dene? 

THE CHAIRMAN ( Mr. Fraser ) :  Mr. T'Seleie. 

MR. FRANK T'SELEI E: Yes, that could be r esolved b etween ourselves, between the 
Dene and the Inuit. 

THE CHA I RMAN ( Mr .  Fraser ) :  Any fur ther questions? Hon. Mr . Mccallum. 

Figures On Dene Majority 

HON. A RNOLD McCALLUM: Mr. Chairman, to Mr. J ohn T'Seleie. Mr . Chairman, 
M r. T' Seleie made a statement wherein he said that the Dene ar e the majority 
in the West. M y  question is twofold. What figures does Mr. T'Seleie have to 
back that statement and does he include within the D ene the Metis? 

THE CHAIRMAN ( Mr .  Fraser ) :  Thank you, Hon. Mr. McCallum. M r .  T'Seleie . 

MR. J OHN T ' SELEIE: Yes, the Metis are included with the Dene, together in the 
major ity. 

TliE CHA IRMAN (Mr . Fr aser ) :  Thank you, Mr . T'Seleie . Any fur ther questions, 
Hon. Mr . Mcc allum? 

HON. A RNOLD McCALLUM: I would j ust like to ask again the first question. 
What figures does he h ave to suggest the Dene are the major ity? 

THE CHAIRMAN ( Mr .  Fraser ) :  Thank you, Mr. McCallum .  Mr . T 'Seleie. 
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MR . JOHN T'SELEIE: I am sorry, I did not memorize any fig ures. 

THE CHAIRMAN (Mr. Fraser) : Than k you, Mr. T'Seleie. Mr. Sibbeston. 

M R .  SIBBE STON: Mr. Chairman, I was j ust wondering if the witnesses can tell us 
whether the Dene Nation looks to this Assembly to  g ive it support for its 
government proposal, Denendeh, in the northwestern part of the North. 

THE CHAIRMAN (Mr. Fraser): Thank you, Mr. Sibbeston. Mr. T ' Seleie. 

MR . JOHN T' SELEIE: Yes, the creation of Nunavut implies the creation of 
another territory and we have been after our own g overnment for many, many years, 
so what we are after here is for this Assembly to pass a moti on of support for 
the creation of Denendeh. 

THE CHAIRMAN (Mr. Fraser) : Thank you, Mr. T'Seleie. Mr. Sibbeston. 

MR. SIBBESTON: Do the witnesses feel that the relationship between the Dene 
Nation and the territorial g overnment has become better in the last year and 
do they intend to hold discussions with all people in the northwestern part of 
the North in reg ard to thei r proposal for Denendeh? 

THE CHAIRMAN (Mr. Fraser) : Than k you, Mr. Sib beston. Mr. T'Seleie. 

MR .  JOHN T'SELEIE: Yes. 

THE CHAIRMAN (Mr. Fraser) : Any further questions? There bein g no further 
questions could we than k the witnesses. Mr. T'Seleie. 

MR .  JOHN T'SELEIE: Mr. Chairman, may I make a few additional comments? 

THE CHAIRMAN (Mr. Fraser): Fine, g o  ahead, Mr. T'Seleie. 

Advantages For All Northern People 

MR .  J OHN T 1 SELEIE: The Dene Nation feels that the creation of Nunavut and 
D enendeh is in the interest of all northern people. It would be advan tageous 
for all northern people, because it would mean the transfer of certain controls 
to the North. I think that refers back to some of the statements we made on 
Friday in the prepared statemen t, that this Assembly has to beg i n  to take 
seri ous measures in taking control from Ottawa, because this debate that we are 
involved in today is not only a debate about the creati on of a g overn ment or the 
drawin g of a line on a map. I think that it is a debate that touches on the 
larger issues of national unity, the larger issues of the constitution, and that 
i f  this g overnment lies down and plays dead that the rig hts of all northern 
people will be threatened. I hope that during your debates you will keep that 
in mind. Thank you. 

THE CHAIRMAN (Mr. Fraser): Thank you, Mr. T'Seleie. Mr. Butters. 

HON. TOM BUTTERS: Mr. Chairman, a question arising out of the statement just 
made by the witness. He mentioned, and I do not know if I have the correct quote, 
but sug g esting that the divisi on of the present Northwest Territories " woul,d be 
advantageous for all northern peop le" . Am I then correct in believing that the 
witness is saying that any such division is of interest to all of the people of 
the Northwest Territories and that all of the people of the Northwest Territories 
shoul d be consul ted, involved, and have an opportunity to comment on the proposed 
di vision ? 

THE CHAIRMAN ( Mr. Fraser) : Thank you, Mr. Butters. Mr. T'Seleie. 

MR . JOHN T'SELEIE: Yes, certainly it means all of those things. 
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THE CHAIRMAN (Mr. Fraser) : Thank you, Mr. T'Seleie. Mr. Stewart. 

Cond itional Support For Asse mbly 

HON. DON STEWART: The witness has indic ated that a strong stand should be 
taken by the government. I presu me by " government" he meant the territorial 
Assembly as so constituted now. It has been my understanding that the Dene 
Nati on has refused to recognize this Assembly as their government. Is the 
Dene Nation prepared to recognize this? It seems we c annot act as your 
government sinc e you have publicly stated that we are not your government. 
Are you prepared to reverse that and say that we are your government now? 

THE C H AIRMAN ( Mr. Fraser) : Thank you, Mr. Stewart. Mr. T'Seleie. 

MR. J OHN T'SELEIE: Mr. 
principles of democracy 
that they want and that 
and is conditional upon 
principle of d emoc rac y. 
support would be foolish 
upon whether or not this 
democrac y is about. 

Stewart, we live i n  a d emocractic c ountry. One of the 
is the right of people to vote for the type of government 
the support in a d emoc ratic c ountry is support of people 
what the government of that country does. That is a 

Of c ourse, for us to give this Assembly its u nconditional 
from ou r point of view. Our support i s  c ond itional 
government serves our interests and that is what 

THE C HAIRMAN ( M r. Fraser) : Thank you, Mr. T'Seleie. Mr. Stewart. 

HON. DO N STEWART: Thank you for the lesson on d emoc racy.  The problem as I have 
seen it, the territorial government has lost a great d eal of strength in 
negotiating for many of the things that you want. Again we run into the federal 
system that says that the Dene does not rec ognize you so how can you speak for 
anything that they may want. This has always been the problem. We have got to 
try and get one roof over what we are trying to do, so that we c an accomplish 
the things that you want, but we have no strength. One group says, " Well, we 
do not rec ognize you" and the other group says, " We do not recognize you" ,  so 
the territorial Assembly really has had a great d eal of its strength pulled 
away from it by the mere f act  that groups wi thin the Northwest Territories 
have flatly stated " It is not our government. " 

Dene Nation Must Recognize The Government 

So, we have had our proble ms. I think until we c an rise at the time and say 
" Yes, we want c hange and we are prepared to �,ork toward s c hange" and when you 
recognize us not as a negotiator for your land claim$ as we recognize this is 
your prerogative, there are things that we c an do but have got to do them with 
your blessi ng. Yes, you must say they are our government and they are speaking 
for us. Do you see what I mean? You see, the Dene Nation has flatly said 
ti me after time that we do not rec ognize that governm� nt. 

THE C HAIRMAN (Mr. Fraser) : Thank you , Mr. Stewart. Mr. T'Sel eie. 

MR. JOHN T 'SELEIE: Mr. Stewart, I think if you would institute a motion to try 
to get som e kind of court ac tion against the Norman Wells pipeline that you 
would have more of our su pport. 

SOME HON. MEMBERS: Hear, hear! 

THE CHAIRMAN (Mr. Fraser ) :  Thank you, Mr. T'Seleie. Mr. Sibbeston. 

M R .  SI BBESTON: Mr. C hairman, I am just wondering if the Dene Nation's position 
in respec t to this government is that they d o  not rec ognize the government as 
their government. They d o  recognize that it is a government, but that it d oes 
not have the full support of the Dene Nation. Is that a c orrect assessment of 
your view toward this g overnment? 
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THE CHAIRMAN (Mr. Fraser) : Thank you, Mr. S ibbeston. Mr. T'Sel eie. 

MR. JOHN T'S ELEIE: Yes, I think that is basical ly it. 

MR . S IBBESTON: That is what I thought. 

THE CHAIRMAN (Mr. F raser) : T hank you , Mr. T'S el eie. An y further questions? 
There being no further questions, could we thank the witnesses? Agreed? 
T hank you very much for appearing again before Assembly and an swering questions. 
Mr. Curley. 

Appreciati on For CBC Coverage 

MR . CURLEY: Mr. Chairman, I would j ust lik e to congratulate the last witnesses 
from the native organizations becau se I think I should say at this time that we 
have had for the first time, an opportunity to give those organization s extensive 
opportunity to respond to the Mem bers of the Assembly. By doing that I would 
also l ik e  to give my appreciation to the coverage the CBC has had with those 
people. Because they have been a minority, they have never had an opportunity 
for extensive coverage but this tim e I think the CBC deserves to be given a 
little nod of appreciation by this House. 

---Applause 

THE CHAIRMAN (Mr. Fraser): Thank you, Mr . Curley. Thank you again ,  Mr. Frank 
T'S eleie and Mr. J ohn T ' Seleie. We have completed the witnesses. I t  was 
recomm ended that they come back and answer questions. I think we have had 
them all back, whoever is here, and I believe that the municipal mayor from 
Yel l owknife has returned home so we cannot get him on the stand. I s  it the 
wish then that we go into the unity committee report? We are open for comments 
from the floor on the unity committee report, but f irst of all we will break 
for 15 minutes for coffee. 

---SHORT RECESS 
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THE CHAIRMAN (Mr. Fraser): The Cha ir recognizes a quorum. We a re o pen for  
genera l co mments on  the specia l committee o n  unity of the Ninth Assembly. 
a m  going to try to restrict the co mments to Members other tha n the unity 
co mmittee. The unity co mmittee have ha d a cha nce to co mment. They will get 
a cha n ce a ga in but I wo uld like to see the Members comment a nd then we will 
co me back to the Members of the unity co mmittee. Co mments o f  a general naturP.. 
Mr. Pudluk. 

Cha nges Ca nnot Be Ma d e  Overn ight 

MR. PUDLUK: (Transla tio n )  Mr. Chairma n ,  I wo uld like to make a small comment 
co n cerning the witnesses. I would like to make a motio n we a pprecia te them fo r 
comin g a s  witnesses. On the questio n o f  d ivisio n it seems to make a lot o f  
sense to o ur la nd , our people, our settlements. I have been a Member for  
five yea rs now. I have o ne  problem tha t ex ists concerning the legisla tion tha t 
we a re trying to make, trying hard. It ha s ca used quite a bit of problems 
because there a re d ifferences in our culture a nd our ways, mostly co ncerning 
the wildlife regulatio n s. This cannot be cleared up because o f  d ifferences in 
lifestyle. If the N o rth is to be divided, there will be proba bly o ther pro blems 
co ncerning this. We ca nn o t  j ust leave things the way they a re belo w the tree 
line. We cannot just leave them like that a n d  I k n o w  we will not, but if the 
o rdinances could be o pera ted, the o rd inances could be in better cond ition a n d  
because o f  those o rd inances pro blems a re forcing the d ivision o f  the No rthwest 
Territories. I k n o w  tha t it ca n not  be d o ne o vernight. It pro ba bly would solve 
a lot of financia l pro blems tha t we have right now. This Legisla tive Assembly 
ca n make this unity co mmittee follow our o ptio n s  a nd I a m  in full suppo rt o f  
wha t they wrote d o wn. Also the ITC presenta tion tha t they gave us, I 
a ppreciated it too .  I thought I wa s j ust going to make a small co mment. Tha t 
is wha t I wanted to tell you, tha t there a re differences in the No rthwest 
Territories. Tha t is a ll fo r n o w. Thank you. 

THE CHAIRMAN (Mr. Fra ser): Thank you, Mr . Pudluk. 
Ms. Courno yea . I wo uld j ust like to remind Members 
comments you should a lso feel free to a sk questio n s  
co mmittee, whether it be the cha irman o r  o n e  o f  the 
Ms. Cournoyea . 

Nex t speaker I have is 
that when making gen era l 
o f  cla rifica tion o f  the 
Members o f  the co mmittee. 

MS . COURNOYEA: Mr. Chairma n ,  I a m  n o t  asking  o r  making a genera l co mment. 
Wha t I would like to know fro m the chairma n o f  the unity co mmittee, I would 
like a brea k d o wn on where he met with the various o rganiza tions a nd wha t a mount 
of time he spent with each. 

THE CHAIRMAN (Mr. Fraser) : T ha nk you, Ms. Co urno yea . Are yo u prepared to 
a nswer tha t now, Mr. Ma cQua rrie? 

Schedule Of Unity Co mmittee 

MR. MacQUARRI E :  To the best o f  my a bility, certa inly fro m  memory. We met with 
the boa rd o f  d irectors o f  the Inuit Ta pirisa t o f  Ca n a d a  in Eskimo Po int nea r 
the end o f  March a nd the meeting we a ttended with them la sted severa l hours. 
I ca nnot sa y exactly how ma n y, but it wa s several hours. Prio r to tha t time we 
did have o r  d id sit fo r a n  evening with the Ho n .  C. M. Drury o ver dinner a n d  
ta lked a bo ut a va riety o f  things that were related to his repo rt a n d  a lso to 
wha t we were trying to d o .  Tha t wo uld have been perha ps three hours time. We 
visited the regio na l In uit a ssociatio ns, the Baffin Regio n I n uit Asso ciation 
in Fro bisher Bay in July, the Keewatin Inuit Associa tio n in Baker La k e  in Jun e, 
the Kitikmeo t Inuit Asso cia tio n in Ca mbridge Ba y in August a n d  a ga in each of 
these meetin gs would have been of  severa l ho urs d ura tio n ,  the o ne in Ba ker Lake 
being the sho rtest, perha ps o n ly a n  hour a nd a half maybe there. The others 
were lo n ger than that. We a lso met with the boa rd of  directors o f  the Metis 
Asso cia tion in Yellowknife a nd that wo uld have been in J uly a s  I recollect, 
a nd the meetin g a ga in would have been a perio d o f  a few hours. We a lso met with 
the Dene Natio n in Yellowknife on  two occasio n s. The first wo u ld have been with 
the president, I ca n no t  really reca ll whether it wa s April o r  so mewhere in 
that neighbourho o d  a nd tha t wo uld ha ve been o ver a period o f  perha ps t wo a n d  a 
half hours, a nd a gain in S eptember for  a perio d o f  perha ps two a nd a half hours, 
so mething like tha t. 
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In addition a g reat many materials were circulated to M embers which included 
t h e  positions of all of the native g roups in t he Northwest Territories, t he COPE 
ag reement in princi ple, the Dene discussion paper on Dene g overnment in th e 
M ackenzie Valley, the Nunavut proposal of ITC and Drury's report and a g reat many 
other papers as well. I cannot vouch that every Member read every document but 
I can vouch that I did so. In addition , we had a final meeting in Yellowknife 
that extended over four days during which time we referred specifically to  many 
t hing s t hat were written i n  the p roposals, went back and read t hem in a variet y 
of documents, discussed them, recol lected the meetings that we h ad had with a 
variety of people and t alked about -- pardon me, t here was one other meeting, 
t he COPE meeting in Inuvik and I think t hat was late July, and that would have 
lasted about three hours as well. Back to the final meeting ag ain wh ich extended 
over a period of four days when we did quite th oroughly I t h ink discuss and 
review t he t hings t hat we had heard and t alked about and read and then finally 
began to deal with recommendations after that ex tensive discussion. 

THE CHAIRMAN (Mr. Fraser) : Thank you, M r. MacQuarrie. Ms. Cournoyea. 

MS. COURNOYEA: When you were conducting your unity visits to the various 
places that you have visited, did you h ave a specific list of questions that 
were given to each org anization or g roup t h at were similar? 

THE CHAI RMAN (Mr. Fraser) : Thank you, Ms. Cournoyea. Mr. MacQuarrie. 

Unity Committee Prepared With Specific Questions 

M R. MacQUARRIE:  We started out in that fash ion. I would say largely that was 
a method th at I had chosen as chairman, not to formally put quest ions to the 
g roup but rather that we would be prepared with questions, but I found that as 
th e g roups saw that we were prepared with questions they wanted copies of t hose 
specific questions. When we g ave t hem those copies, that kind of diverted the 
free discussion and interpl ay that we were seeking so t hat in meetings later on 
we tended to get away from t h at. E ach of t h e  Members thoug h t  over t he  kinds 
of things t h at t h ey would like to know th emselves and t hose matters were raised 
at t he meeting s. 

THE CHAIRMAN (Mr. Fraser) : Thank you, Mr. MacQuarrie. Ms. Cournoyea. 

MS. COURNOYEA: Then you would say t h at t h e  list of questions t hat you began 
with was not applied to your later meetings, you made t he  decision somewh ere 
between half way in your discussions with people t hat t his was not a g ood 
idea so in your last meetings you did not have t h e  list of questions 
availabl e or presented? 

THE CHAIRMAN (Mr. Fraser) : Thank you, Ms. Cournoyea. M r. MacQuarrie. 

MR. MacQUARRIE: Not a list of formal quest ions at the end, alt houg h certainly 
many of t h e  same questions t h at had been raised earlier would have been raised 
at times like that but naturall y i n  dealing with each g roup there would certainly 
be a different focus, different concerns, depending on the g roup we were dealing 
wit h .  

THE CHAIRMAN (Mr. Fraser) : Thank you, Mr. MacQuarrie. Mrs. Sorensen. 

Support Of Unity Committee 

M RS. SORENSEN : Th ank you, Mr. Chairman. I h ave g eneral com ments that I would 
like to  make now concerning t he unity commit tee report. Th roughout t he last 
12 month s, M r. Chairman, I have defended t he Ninth Assembly's move to  not be 
bound by the E ig h t h  Assembly's position paper on political and constitut ional 
development and in addi tion I have and I know my const ituents have support ed 
the Ninth Assembly' s decision to appoint th e unity committee to determine and 
make recommendations on a means by which a political consensus mig h t  be g enerated 
among the people of t he Nort hwest Territories. Now it was my understanding that 
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the c reation of the unity c ommittee and the approval of its mandate was the 
first stage of the L egislative Assembly ' s  pl an to develop its own position 
on c onstitutional development in the Northwest Territories. I t  was also my 
understanding, Mr . Chai rman, that the sec ond stage would involve the 
impl ementation of the unity committee's rec ommendations as adopted by this 
Legislative Assembly. Now over the last 1 2  months I have fel t quite c onfident 
that the unity committee was working diligently and urgently to develop 
rec ommendations for this fall session and I bel ieve, Mr. Chairman, that we have 
been presented with what I would term a very powerful report, a report whic h in 
fact will c hange the North. 

There is at least one fundamental principle within this report which I feel we 
must discuss even before we discuss the rec ommendations. The unity c ommittee 
has in its preamble c learly stated that the Northwest Territories has served as 
an interim measure for the provision of public administration to be altered 
when some other part or parts of the Territories seemed ready for provincial 
status and I am talki ng about the Northwest Territories, not the Northwest 
Territories government, although the same would probably apply. 

Now, if a new territory called Nunavut is establ ished then the unity c ommittee 
tells us that the interim arrangement stills exists in the remaining jurisdiction 
in the West and ITC supports that. I believe they said on Saturday that 
we have not dec ided what we want in the West and I am afraid that many would 
agree. The unity c ommittee infers that we are not really forming two new 
territories if we divide, only one c alled Nunavut which aspires as Saskatc hewan 
and Alberta did in 1 9 05 to provinc ehood, that we in the West are not sure 
of what we want and that is why the c onstitutional committee and a c onstitutional 
c onference has been rec ommended for the leftover region known as the Northwest 
Territories if we should divide. 

N . W. T. Has B een Whittled Away 

I c an devel op that theory, Mr. Chairman, the theory that the Northwest Territories 
is an interim measure. Briefly though, in 1 870 the Northwest Territories was 
purchased from the Hudson's Bay Company by Canada. This was a huge tract of land 
that incl uded and c overed most of Canada. Sinc e that purc hase the Northwest 
Territories have been whittled away as parts seemed ready for provincial status. 
We have all heard that Manitoba was first to divide or leave the Northwest 
Territories forming the fifth Canadian province .  More of the Northwest 
Territori es was given to Quebec and Ontario to c ompl ete their provincial 
boundaries. Then came Saskatchewan and Alberta and now, Mr. Speaker, now the 
unity c ommittee states history is taking its c ourse. Another part of the 
Northwest Terri tories wishes to break away. It feels it is ready for provincial 
status. That part will be c alled Nunavut. 

The unity c ommittee points out that the remaining portion, the Western Arctic, 
will remain the Northwest Territories and to c ontinue on as a stopgap 
administr ation unless or until the people of that area dec i de differently. What 
we c ould have next is the western High Arc tic breaking away when it is ready. 
We may also have that area defined as Denendeh feel it is ready for provincial 
status and so break away or, Mr. Chairman, the West c ould opt to have one public 
government in one trac t of land with a new name . As this happens the 
Northwest Territories, as history knows it, would bec ome less and less of a huge 
trac t of land. I f  history is c orrec t it will c ontinue to shrink and eventually 
c ease to exist. 

Thi s, my friends, my honourable c olleagues, i s  a powerful fundamental princ iple 
i n  the unity c ommittee report and one that this L egislative Assembly must 
adopt or rej ect even before we begin to discuss the rec ommendations ,  because the 
c oncept of what the Northwest Territories is and has been will determine to a 
great extent how we must vote on the unity c ommittee ' s  rec ommendations. We 
c annot ignore the unity c ommittee's preamble. It is too important and relates 
too muc h to the rec ommendations to leave without discussion. 
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Division I nevitable But Subject To Referendum 

Now, with respect to Mr. Patterson's motion supporting division, it was my 
f eeling initially that if it was discussed before the r ecommendations of the 
u nity committee it would usurp th e rol e of the unity committee. Mr. Patterson, 
I thought, would be asking th e Assembly to approve of a constitutional change 
before the Assembly had even determined the mechanism for th e discussion of 
major ch ange, let alone conducted the second stage of its plan, that of th rough 
that mechanism determine the consensu s point of view on constitutional change. 
Mr. Ch airman, the unity committee has already r ejected that. It has accepted 
the fact that division is inevitabl e, but of course, subject to a r eferendum. 

Next then, it has recommended th rough recommendation number nine, a mech anism 
whereby the r em aining territory can shape its futu r e  and that mechanism is a 
constitutional committee and possibly a constitutional conference. With respect 
to the report, I must say again that the committee has worked hard to try to 
please everyone because there is something for everyone in it. However , I 
caution that it cannot be taken lightly. 

MR. CURLEY: We cannot wait too long. 

MRS. SORE NSEN: I made a submission to the unity committee in early September 
and in that r eport there were at least nine r ecommendations. At least five of 
those recommendations ar e in some way or another included in the unity committee ' s  
report and I like that, but th er e are some which were not and, th erefore, when 
we ar e in the more detailed discussion of the report I will elaborate further 
on those items and try to persu ade my colleagues here to include them. 

E ighth Assembly Missed Brilliant Oppor tunity 

The u nity committee report makes r eference to Mr. Dr u r y ' s statement in his now 
well known letter of April 22nd, 19 80, r ecently repr inted in th e News of the 
North in which he stated, " Residents of the Northwest T erritories should assume 
maj or r esponsibility for determining political change. " Certainly I apply th at 
statement. I t  has been my position for many years. I f  I h ave one maj or 
criticism of the E ighth Assembly, that is the last Assembly, it would be th e 
fact that they decided to co- operate with the Dr u r y  commission. As much as 
I r espect and admir e Mr. Drury and his hard working and loyal staff and as much 
as I agree with many of the Drury report suggestions and r ecommendations, it 
was always absolutely clear to me that we in the North h ad to decide what our 
political and constitutional futur e would be. What was even more clear to me 
and I remember saying it at the time, was that th e E ighth Legislative Assembly 
missed a brilliant opportunity to j oin with th e native organizations in their 
boycott of the Drury commission. They perhaps missed their only opportunity 
to begin a r elationship with th e native organizations wh ich was l ong overdue. 

Th e Drury report has not bee� discussed in this House and I dou bt that it ever 
will. I agree with the unity committee when they say that many of th e Drury 
r eport suggestions will have application when th e details of constitutional 
development are addressed in one or more northern territories becau se h is 
r eport is practical and many of h is suggestions u sefu l and worthy of deep 
consideration. 

THE CHAIRMAN (Mr. Fraser) : Mrs. Sor ensen, are you just about finished? Y ou 
have used your ten minutes. 

MRS. SORENSEN: Yes. I say we will not discard the report because of the 
personalities of the people involved in the Dru ry report. I believe th at they 
wer e and ar e good people, but simply they wer e not of us. They were a creature 
of th e federal government and northerners can no longer afford to al low our 
political futur e to be a subject of federal study. 

Political And Constitutional Recommendations Ar e I n  Northern Hands 

The unity committee r eport, Mr. Chairman, is the beginning of ou r Drury report, 
our own special r eport on political and constitutional change. Mr. Patterson's 
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motion, a bri lli ant moti on, a good motion whi ch i s  due to come up for debate 
s oon i s  the beginni ng of the shapi ng of our political and consti tutional 
des ti ny, the beg i nning of maki ng tough deci s i ons i n  thi s House and recommendati ons 
to the federal government whi ch, as s ome have always s aid, have always been put 
as i de as too tough to addres s .  The di fference, Mr. Chai rman, thi s ti me i s  that 
poli ti cal and cons ti tutional recommendati ons are out of the control of the 
federal hands and i n  the hands of the northern people, i n  the hands of thi s  
Legislative As s embly made up of all people of the North, in the hands of the 
people where i t  belongs. Thank you, Mr. Chai rman. 

THE CHAIRMAN (Mr. Fras er): Thank you, Mrs . Sorens en. Any further comment? 
Mr. Si bbeston, we were going to give the Members that have not s poken yet to 
the report firs t chance, but it does not s eem li ke anybody has their hand up. 
Mr. Butters ? We wi ll come back to the uni ty committee Members at a later time. 

Debt Of Grati tude To Uni ty Committee 

HON. TOM BUTTERS : S peaki ng, s i r, to general comments . I have two parti cular 
di recti ons I would like to purs ue, b ut fi rs t  I would s pend my firs t ten mi nutes 
congratulati ng the uni ty commi ttee, the f i ve Members who not only concei ved 
the idea and put i t  to the House, but brought i t  to i ts completion in a very 
s hort s pace of ti me. In recognizing a debt of grati tude to the Members of that 
commi ttee, I do not i n  any way s ugges t that I am totally in s upport of s ome of 
the di recti ons that i t  presents to us or the recommendati ons that it has laid 
before us , but I think we cannot take away from that commi ttee a real debt for 
the very hard work and care and thoughtfulnes s that has gone into it by i ts 
Members and particularly i ts chai rman, the hon. Bob M acQuarrie. 

I remember on the fi rs t opportuni ty to reply to the Commi s s i oner's opening 
Addres s ,  I menti o 1 ed that the Ni nth As s embly i s  a very interes ti ng departure 
from previ ous As� embli es in that for the fi rs t  ti me the debate and the di alogue 
in the Terri tori es will not be a case of " other voices � other rooms''. I n  the 
Ni nth As s embly the record and his tory wi ll show that the debate on consti tuti onal 
evoluti on i n  the Northwes t Territori es took place where i t  belongs , i n  the 
terri tori al House of As s embly and I thi nk that thi s i s  one of the plus es and 
achi evements of the uni ty commi ttee in that as a res ult of thei r report they 
have enabled us to hear from, with the one exception and that i s  the Inuvi alui t,  
they have enabled us to hear from all of the major organi zations in thes e 
Terri tori es today. 

Unders tandably, the Hon. Bud Drury was not pres ent but I thi nk that he would 
be deli ghted even though he could not be here with what has occurred i n  this 
chamber. If you wi ll remember, Bud Drury has s ai d  and his report contains the 
recommendati on and in fact his coveri ng letter to the Prime Mini s ter indicates 
that the people of the North wi ll be able to res olve and work out their own 
parti cular di fferences i f  gi ven the opportuni ty and left alone to do s o. 

Interes t In Di vi s i on For Many Years 

I would j us t  like to bri efly exami ne the pres entations that have been made to 
us . I cannot recall that i n  any pres entati on that we heard and even in any 
comment or question or s ugges ti on that we have heard from the Members of thi s  
As s embly that there i s  anybody agains t the idea of di vi s i on of the Terri tories. 
The i dea is an old one as the hon. Member from Frobi s her Bay has poi nted out, 
i t  became a bill in the Hous e of Commons i n  1964 I beli eve and di ed on the order 
paper at that ti me ,  but that di d not end the i nteres t in di vis i on. It 
materi alized i n  the report of the Carrothers Commis s i on and the Carrothers 
Commi s s ion we will remember, recommended that the concept of divi s i on be delayed 
for ten years . I remember th? t very well because i n  1964-65 my pres entati on to 
the Carrothers Commi s s i on was for divis ion. 
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In 1975 the t en years being up, t he outgoing Seventh Assembly of that day, 
and t he incoming E i ghth Assembly rec alled and recoll ected t hat recommendation 
a nd sought for a re-examination of t he question of division. The Eighth 
Assembly has recei ved a number of kicks and sl ights for possibly not addressing 
t his question but I think t hat some of our current membersh ip forget t h e  c limat e 
in wh ic h t h e  E ight h Assembly was compri sed. For t h e  first t ime we had 15 
elected Members. We recognized the issue of division was very st rong. I n  fact 
t h e  previous member for Frobisher Bay, the hon. Bryan Pearson was p ersonal ly 
responsible for seeing t h at t he E ighth Assembly was 15 seats. Had it not been 
for Mr. Pearson, t hat Assembly would have been assembled with 14 seats and there 
would h ave been an imbal ance with the Arctic areas not so well represented, but 
Mr. Pearson made a personal representation t o  Mr. Chretien and 15 seats were 
set up. 

E ighth Assembly Did Not Ignore Division 

I t hink there was a recognition t hat for the first time el ected Members were in 
control of t he government to a c ertain ext ent. We rec ognized that we wan t ed 
t o  make t he governmen t work. We wanted t o  put to rest t he lie t hat elec t ed 
people, a wholly elec ted Assembly could not be responsi ble and coul d not c arry 
out t he function of a legislature. I believe we put that criticism and conc ern, 
relegated t h at concern to t h e  place where it deserves to be. However, we did 
not ignore -- while we did not debate division, we did not ignore it and in t he 
Priorities for t he North paper whic h t he E ighth Assembly put out, t here is one 
item on con stitutional development whic h indicated t hat we were aware of the 
question of division as we said at that t ime and t his received very t horough 
c onsideration by every member of t hat House. 

Th e same cannot be said for t he constitut ional report we gave to Bud Drury. 
T h at was hammered together in t he last few months of the Eighth Assembl y ' s  life 
and it did not get the examination and consideration by members of t h e  Assembly 
t n at it maybe should h ave, but t h e  Eighth Assembly said t h e  quest ion of 
divis ion of t he Northwest Territories is of suc h magnitude t hat it must be brought 
wit hin the t erms of reference of t he Prime Minister's special represen tative 
and in no case would t his Legislature recommend an y division based on the new 
federal constit uenc y boundaries. This is what we recommended. We recommended 
that the subj ect of division might possibl y be referred to a referendum at t he 
time of the nex t general elect ions, so t hat the E igh t h  Assembly did recognize 
that division was a very important question but rath er t han h ave it appear to 
split that 15 seat Assembl y we recognized its importance and referred it for 
consideration at anot h er time. 

Summarization Of Witnesses 

Now to bring us c loser to t h e  debate t hat is beginning on t he division issue, I 
would like t o  just very quickly summarize what I heard t he various witnesses 
say. COPE , as you remember, could not attend bec ause of t he short time available 
t o  them and t hey suggested to us t hat " If you are t ruly seekin g our effec tive 
involvement in t he considerat ion of t his issue it should be delayed until t he 
n ex t  session. " ITC whic h has indicated its int erest in t he divi sion issue for 
many years said that ITC has never argued t hat the creation of Nunavut could be 
achieved overnight and in anot her case one of t he witnesses said " I  think 
people should understand t hat once the idea of c reating a new political unit has 
been acc epted t hat is all we are really after. " So all they are asking us is to 
recognize t hat division is a realist ic direct ion for th e people of the N orth 
to pursue. The Member of Parliament for the Western Arc tic, t he Hon. Dave 
Nickerson said " I  think t hat division should have occurred in t he 1960's" and 
n is colleague in t he opposition also supported as a con cept the direc tion of 
division. The Association of Municipalities said the Association of 
Municipali t ies can agree t hat in t h e  long t erm division is perhaps the inevitable. 
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T he Metis Associ_ ati_ on said " We feel that the concept of a separate territory 
known as Nunavut is i nevitabl e and we support the asp irati o n� of the Inuit in 
seeking self-determinatio n. However, we also feel that the split shou ld occur 
at a time when it i s  most beneficial . . . " 

THE CHAIRMAN ( Mr. Fraser) : Mr. Butters, your ten minutes are up. Are you just 
about through? We are going to have to change the rul es here. think maybe if 
it is the wish of the Members on an important report like this if they want to 
change the rules to let Members tal k over ten minutes, otherwise we are going to 
have to get unanimous consent to continue with the comments. Carry on. Three 
seconds. 

HON. T OM BUTTERS: " . . .  when it is most beneficial and ag reeable to all people 
of the North" and the Dene Nation position was one that accepted the concept of 
division, but again sug gested that certain powers should be in the hands of the 
peopl e of the Territories before that division occurred. Thank you. I h ave 
some more things to say when I have more time. 

THE CHAIRMAN (Mr. F raser) : Thank you , Hon. Mr. Butters. Any further comments? 
I am asking Members who do not belong to the unity committee to comment on the 
report and then we can g o  back to the Members. If there is nobody else to 
commen t -- Hon. Mr. Mccallum. 

Difficul ty Unity Committee Has E ncountered 

HON. ARNOLD McCALLUM: Mr. Chairman, thank you. I would just like very briefly 
to indicate that I would recog nize the difficulty that a committee such as this 
would have in trying to prepare and to complete a report dealing with such a 
difficult and important topic that its m andate gave it within such a period of 
time, not only in moving around the various areas and meeting with various people, 
either collectively or indi vidually and trying to assess and put down what those 
views are and to come forth as a voice either for unity or for something else. 
It is not u nusual to have that committee criticized in a number of areas for, 
among other things, lack of full and meaningful, to use the kind of terminol ogy 
that is bandied about, consultation and it is not possible to g et all these 
thing s together. However, I would as I say, like to indicate my appreciation 
of the difficulty that the committee encountered in its work. I have some 
concerns that it was a committee for unity and, of course, what comes out of it 
is not unity and that may be the difficulty with the name itsel f. Quite 
obviously it is a misnomer, g iven the final resu lt. 

Previous Assemblies Wanted Change 

There is some indication that there should be some kind of unity, as Mrs. Sorensen 
indicated, the possibility that there may be some unity in parts of the 
Territories, not the least of which there would be unity as was expressed by ITC 
within their proposed area. However, I would simply like to sug gest to Members 
of the com mittee, that is, this committee of the whole that I think it is not 
only native g roups, I believe it is not only native g roups that want chang e 
in government. I think there has been change advocated in g overnment, even g oing 
back to the Sixth and Seventh Assemblies of the Northwest Territories and the 
little bit of thing s that they did in comparison with later ones, obviously they 
wanted change. Certainly in terms of the Seventh Assembly they put forth the 
idea of increased representations, put forth the idea that there had to be a 
fully elected Assembly at that time and I think the kind of w o r k  that they opened 
up was continued by the E ig hth Assembly, will be continu ed by the Ninth Assembly. 
But I want to know that many people recognize there is a need to change, for that 
change to be brought about. There are many statements that I agree with, not the 
least of which would be that political development must and can only proceed when 
the expressed interests of various commu nities of people are heard and addressed. 
I agree that strong and effective government for all people has to be founded 
upon the consent of those who are g overned. 
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While I ag ree that there were many aspects to the committee's report that I 
would be in support of, nevertheless there were some conclusion s made in the 
recommendations that I find very difficult to not only support but to recog nize 
the conclusions that were drawn . To those particular areas . . .  

THE CHAIRMAN (Mr. Fraser): Mr. McCal l u m, we are having difficulty with the 
in terpreters. Can you hear me now? Carry on, Mr. Mccallum. How about now? 
Ap parently we are having some p robl ems here. Testing , testing , one, two, three. 
Maybe we should g et Mr. Butters back on there so he could keep talking . 
Mr. McCallum, try ag ain. 

Appreciation Of Unity Committee Members' Work 

HON. ARNOLD McCALLUM: Mr. Chairman, I would simply conclude that there are 
aspects and recommendations of the committee's report with which I ag ree. 
Conversely there are aspects and recommendations that I will find it very 
difficult to support, that I fail to see the logic behind the kinds of 
recommendations that were made, so that I wil l have particular comments to make 
regarding individual recommen dations as we g o  throug h those, but I si mply want 
as an indication of how I feel i n  terms of the committee's work and the effort 
and time that was involved that I will, of course, appreciate the work that 
was done by the Members and the actual end result of it. T hank you. 

THE CHAIRMAN ( Mr. Fraser) :  Than k you, Mr. Mcc al lum. I j u st have a note from 
one of the Members and I will throw it over to the floor. I f  we could go throu g h  
the recommendations starting from one and then discuss each recommendation , I 
wonder what the Members feel about that. Mr. Butters. 

HON. TOM BUTTE RS: Mr. C hairman, I would sug g est that this debate is the most 
important debate for this House. We have spent three and a half days listening 
to the very valuable representations made by witnesses and I think that Members 
of the committee should be allowed to remain on the area of general commen ts 
for as lon g as they feel it is necessary, because once division occurs it 
occurs for all time. 

TH E C H AIRM AN ( Mr. Fraser): Thank you, Mr. Butters. Is it ag reed then that we 
open the floor for general commen ts? 

---Ag reed 

Mr. Patterson. 

MR. PATTE RSON: T han k you, Mr. Chairman. I have talked a lot about division 
already in the life of this Assembly, p robabl y too long for some of the Members' 
taste. I think I once spoke for over an hour an d a half in reply to the 
Commissioner's Address in Y ellowknife and some hon. Members told me I had better 
learn to make shorter speeches, but I am tryin g to learn by the way, Mr. Stewart, 
but I must say that for me personally I am very thrilled about this debate having 
taken place in Frobisher Bay. I have sensed that we are making history and I 
have a strong feel ing that what we are discu ssin g is perhaps the most -- I am 
certainly not as l on g  an observer as some p eople I have tal ked to -- but they 
seem to share this opinion, perhaps the most imp ortant debate this Assembly 
has ever had since it beg an. 

D ivision A Vital Preceden t To Making Progress 

I personally have always had a very strong belief that the division of the 
Northwest Territories was a vital p recedent to making prog ress. I ran for 
election in F robisher Bay on a p latform of dividing the Northwest Territories. 
My p redecessor, Mr. Pearson, fel t the same way and in fact I remember durin g 
the election campaig n in Frobisher Bay, j ust near the end of it, he put an ad 
i n the news p a  per and s a i d " I cannot w a i t f o r Nu n a vu t . ,,. So I fee 1 that the 
people of Frobisher Bay have always seen the sense of division and I mean al l 
the people, not j u st the Inuit either. 

( 



[ 

- 8 6 3  -

I would like to briefly say and perhaps d isagree with Mr. Mccallum that this was 
not a committee set up to promote unity at al l costs. I think Mr. MacQuarrie 
made that quite clear when the committee was established and in fact for that 
reason it was named a committee on unity and not a committee for unity. I think 
they have made an honest effort to see if there was a consensus in favour of 
unity and cl early have found none. 

I woul d like to p ay perhap s particular credit to the chairman of the committee, 
because I think that it is evident from the report that he has d one his 
obj ective best to p ut together all of the different op inions that he encountered 
across the Northwest Territories. I think it is probably fair to say that he 
has d one so at perhaps some personal po l itical risk since many of his constituents 
might well d is agree with some of the stand s that he has taken on such issues as 
whether or not there shoul d be a universal plebiscite and whether or not the 
people in the East shoul d be able to d ecide for themselves. I think he has d one 
that because he has been d eeply committed to being fair and objective and I 
personally want to say that I am very impressed with the way he has conducted 
his duties as chairman. 

I would also like to say that I d isagree with Mr. Drury and perhap s Mr. Drury 
would change his opinion now if he were to be asked if the people of the 
Northwest Territories are read y to make this momentous decision. In his report, 
he felt that we were not yet sufficiently aware of the issues and the 
ramifications to decide and I am not sure that that is true any longer. I 
certainly feel that at the very least after this week the Members of this 
Assembly are read y to give some leadership and d irection and chart a course. 

People All Over N. W. T. Listening To Debate 

I also must echo the previous comments earlier today of my gratitude to the CBC 
for having on very short notice, broad c ast in I believe eight l anguages, this 
debate to the p eopl e of the Northwest Territories, because I think the people 
of the Northwest Territories are perhaps al read y very highly p oliticized . You 
j ust have to look at the turnout that we have in municipal and territorial 
elections comp ared with other parts of Canad a to see that people are interested 
in the workings of government. After this d ebate and it is only because it has 
made the public aware of the issues there has alread y been a tremendous success 
no matter what we decide. I think the public consciousness has been tremend ously 
increased. I went, Mr. Chairman, to an outpost camp yesterday and was astonished 
to find, and I d id not raise the subject, that both young and old people at the 
Allen Island outpost camp have been listening to this d ebate on radio this week 
with fascin ation and are very excited about what is going on . They are excited 
about the fact that a large part of the d iscussion has taken place in a language 
that they can understand . And I have heard comments from all parts of the 
Territories through other Members that the people are excited about what is 
happening and this is very thrilling to me because I believe that this is the 
most important thing that this Assembly will d iscuss. I believe particul arly 
for me personally, that if we can make a d ecision to chart a course and plan the 
future that personally it will be much more easy for me to participate in this 
government and work with this government, because I d o  not understand the West. 
S ome may say I do not even understand the East, but we live in a very complicated 
society with extremely comp licated , competing interests and I think it is too 
much to expect Members of this Assembl y to assimilate and rationalize all of 
those interests and come out with policies that will pl ease everyone. I think 
it is just l ogic al that it is too big for al l of us to handle, despite our 
willingness to co-operate and make compromises. 

Consensus Much Closer As Result Of Debate 

At the same time, Mr. Chairman, I would like to say that I think this Assembly, 
that I have now had the pleasure of associating with for over a year, is a 
remarkable collection of people and I look forward to working with this Assembly 
to implement its d ecisions and I think while we are together we can d o  a lot 
before d ivision takes p lace. I echo the feelings of some people in the West 
that there is a lot that this Assembly can do  before d ivision takes place. 
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Just i n  summi ng up, Mr. Chai rman, I th i nk and again I would d isag ree wi th the 
Hon. Mr. McCal lum, I th i nk that rather than d i suni ty we have come v ery much closer 
to ach i ev i n g consensus as a result of th i s  d ebate th i s  week. There have been 
some reser vati ons ex pressed and concerns expressed about th e possi ble border 
problems. Some fear that th e publi c i s  goi ng to be somehow left out of th i s  
process, but I think all of those questi ons can be answered by th e sort of 
public d iscussi on that we have engaged i n  th i s  week. E veryone, and I ag ree wi th 
the H on. Mr. Butters, everyone seems to feel and th e wor d that is commonly used i s  
i nevitable, that everyone seems to feel that th e d ecision i s  i nevitable and I 
th i nk all we are goi ng to be d iscussi n g  i n  th i s  d ebate i s  th e questi on of th e 
best process for fully i nvolv i ng the publi c an d resolv i ng some of th e d i ff i cult 
questi ons that we face. 

THE CHAIRMAN (Mr. Fraser) : Than k you, Mr. Patterson. Y our ten mi nutes h ave 
expi red . Comments of a g eneral natur e. Mr. Braden. 

HON. GE ORGE BRADEN: Thank you v ery much , Mr. Chai rman. My remarks wi ll be 
bri ef as I know th i s  commi ttee wants to g et i nto d etai led d i scussi on of th e 
uni ty commi ttee report. Fi rst I would li ke to express my thanks to th e un i ty 
committee and al so to th e guests we have had th e opportun i ty of hear i ng d ur ing 
the past few days. Th ei r i n put has been v ery useful in my v i ew because, I 
beli e v e, th ey reflected i n  th e i r presentations a number of v i ews, d i fferences of 
opi n i on and though ts about the future. Th i s  afternoon I want to stress two 
points wh i ch I h ope we wi ll con si d er th roug h ou t  our deli berations. 

Deci si ons Made Are That Of Assembly 

Fi rst I feel that any d eci si ons taken, parti cu larly in respect of th e unity 
commi ttee recommendati ons, are con sidered to be d eci si ons made by th e Leg i slati v e  
Assembly of t h e  Northwest Terri tori es. Wh i le Member s may feel that thei r 
perspecti v e  sh oul d or may only reflect that of a parti cular organi zati on or 
a government, I beli eve that we are i n  the fi nal analysi s maki ng decisi ons on 
behalf of and wh i ch wi ll affect all of th e people of th e Northwest Terr i tori es. 
If I may say, Mr. Chai rman, th e attenti on wh i ch vari ous organ i zati ons and govern­
ments, both federal and muni ci pal, are placi ng on th i s  House, i s  to me another 
indi cati on that wh i le we may be just an i ntejim i nsti tuti on we are representative 
enough to take on th i s  responsi bi l i ty. I h ope that i n  our d eli berati ons we 
wi ll always keep i n  mi nd th e i nterests of our whole con sti tuen cy and that i s  
the Northwest Terri tori es. 

S econd , Mr. Chai rman, I wi sh to offer some comment on what I beli eve to be 
some nati onal factors wh i ch coul d affect our terri tory an d our d eci si ons on th e 
i ssues of poli ti cal development i n  th e North west Terri tori es. More speci fi cally 
I consi d er that we are maki ng d eci si ons i n  almost a total vacuum or wi th v ery 
little knowled g e  of th e federal government's i n tenti ons respecti ng the 
North west Terri tories. Now we do, of course, g et some i n d i cati on from ti me to 
ti me about what they have i n  mi n d  an d I th ink th e latest i nd ication, i f  Members 
h av e  seen th i s  report, i s  the nati onal energy program. 

MR. CURLE Y: S hame! 

HON. GE ORGE BRADEN: We wi l l  see reference i n  th i s  d ocumen t not to ter ri tori al 
land s,  not to abor i g i nal lan d s, but to Canada lands. 

MR. CURLEY: S h ame! 

Ace Up Federal Government's S leeve 

HON. GE ORGE BRADE N: Generally I am very concerned that we may be d i sappoi n ted 
in the future if we do  not make a commi tment, whatever we d eci d e  to do  i n  th i s  
House, whether i t  i s  to stay together or to d i vid e, but we must make a commi tment 
to conti nue to build th e br i d g es that Mr. S uluk referred to and to co- operate 

C 
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together whether it is through a federation of territories, to react to and 
to fight the kind of th ings that are in this report because I believe that the 
Government of C anada h as recognized the Northwest Territories as it exists today 
or however we beli eve it sh ould exist in the future, as their ace up the sleeve. 
Th ey are going to use us in their deliberations against the provinces and in 
trying to define a future for th e Government of Canada in th e resource picture 
of our nation. 

S econd, Mr. Chairman, I will make a general comment on a national factor which I 
find very, very disturbing and that is the reaction of western provinces to the 
new federal budget and th e discussion of separation from Canada. We had this 
once before a few months ago when the province of Quebec was considering 
sovereignty association and I do not know how many Members heard the comment 
one morning from the member of the province of Quebec. He had the audacity to 
say th at in h is view and perhaps in th e view of a lot of members of the province 
of Quebec, Baffin Island sh ould become part of the new Quebec nation. I am very 
concerned, Mr. C hairman, that there are forces in the South which are looking at 
our territory and resources which belong to the aboriginal people of the 
Northwest Territories and to all peopl e of the Northwest Territories, so it is 
not j ust the federal government, Mr. C h airman, it is th e provinces as well. I 
hope that in our debate whether we decide to stay together, wh ether we decide 
to separate, we recognize that in the future we have to continue working together 
because th ere are forces in the South wh ich are overwh elming. We are finding this 
out in th e government every day. Mr. Ch airman, I wish this whole House success 
in th eir deliberations and I look forward to seeing everybody in Yel lowknife in 
February. 

---Laughter 

MR. C U RLEY: Province of Yellowknife. 

MR. PATTERSON: Where is Yellowknife? 

THE C HAIRMAN (Mr. Fraser) : Th ank you, Hon. Mr. Braden. Any further comments? 
Mr. Curley? · 

Those C ommitted To Division Have Done Extra Work 

MR. CURLEY: Yes. If no other Members h ave general comments on th e unity 
committee' s  report I would just like to ex pound furth er the case for the division. 
Mainly I think alth ough some hon. Members on th e other side indicated to this 
House that the Eighth Assembly recognized the fact that political and 
constitutional issues h ad to be discussed with th e publi c and all interested 
parties, I am not sure wheth er they did that and as a result of that, the unity 
committee Members recognized that it was i mportant to pay extra attention to 
those wh o h ad not been given an opportunity to respond by the Eighth Assembly, 
particularly the native organizations. We h ave paid particular attention in 
that fashion not to exclude the other members of the popul ation. They have had 
th eir opportunities to express their interests th rough th eir Members and through 
the MLA's daily routine, daily responsibilities with th eir constituencies. 
I think those of us wh o are committed to division, we h ave done extra work in 
keeping our constituents aware of the developments. I was at Eskimo Point 
recently speaking to th e teachers in that settlement and I asked them the question 
wh at their views were, what their concerns were with respect to the division and 
all the teachers there, not one, there were about 15 of them and not one of them 
ex pressed dissatisfaction with division. They said they would get services 
closer and the positions would be easier and more reflective of the needs of the 
area. 
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West Has Easy Access To Government 

I can understand the Members from the western p art of the area, p articularly 
the southern Mackenzie in their desire to delay the question of division. Like 
the hon. Members, the mayor of Yellowknife, they have all the conveniences they 
need to vi sit and speak to the E xecutive officers of the government. I can 
understand their settlements have access not only by air transportation, 
frequent air transportation to the centre of government, they in the southern 
Mackenzie I believe have access to headquarters by road transportation. They 
have access p retty well in every other way which we do not have in this p art of 
the area so I can understand the Members from the southern Mackenzie and 
Yel lowknife Members saying to me they are not giving their constituents a fair 
rep resentation in this House. What we need I think as I said the other day, is 
a sense of leadershi p .  The case for leadership is a need now rather than a 
vague one. You know, I do not think we should be giving the p ublic, our 
constituents, uncertainty, delay means uncertainty, I do not think we should be 
putting fear about the outside forces because the only time we should fear the 
outside forces is when we are not clear exactly where we want to go. The 
Eastern Arctic is certainly not having that p roblem. We are aware of exactly 
where we would like to go. 

I want again to stress the fact that the communities in the E astern Arctic 
have difficulty in getting access to the government services and to the 
Ministers, unlike the Mackenzie. We can only deal with the communi ties, each 
community in the Baffi n region and there are about 13 of them. We can go 
through them all; Frobisher Bay, Cape Dorset, Pangnirtung, Broughton Island. 
L et us ask ourselves what kind of access do they have going through to the 
Executive Members of the government and asking for certain p olicy matters like 
the Members from Yellowknife have? Some Members are right across from the 
headquarters of the government, just down the street. You can even look 
through the windows and see the Commissioner i n  his office, i f  he has not 
already p ut blinds in his office. These are the kinds of things we do not 
have in the Eastern Arctic and now you are telling us " We might be making a 
decision too quickly to supp ort the principle of division. " I think that is 
going to comp ound the p roblem further with the East and West rel ationship . 

Study The Options 

On that basis, I would urge the Members from the Western Arcti c to not only 
question the judgment of the eastern Members but really question themselves, 
whether they in fact are really rep resenting their constituency. I have not 
heard one good op tion yet. You talk about an option. Let us study all the 
options. What are the op tions? There are only two as far as I know. One is 
to stay together and supp ort the status quo but that is not what the p eople 
in the T erritori es want. The other op tion -- what are the other op tions? I 
have not been given any case for other op tions so what you should be saying 
to us, if you really rep resent your constituents, is to bring a p rop osal to 
us to see whether or not this Assembly would be in sup p ort of i t  rather than 
talking vaguely and very generally about how desirable it is to stay united. 
But I can understand that because, you know, some Members are trying to say to 
me, " Look, if we sep arate the Territories into two distinct p olitical units 
we are going to be sep arating ourselves from the rest of Canada. " I do not 
think that is what we are trying to do. We are not trying to separate like 
Quebec did, so I do not think there needs to be any further exp ression given 
by the Members about fears and p roblems which we would encounter. Sure, we 
would encounter a lot of difficulties, a lot of p roblems, but we are p rep ared 
to work toward solving these p roblems. I think we are ready and I believe that 
we are more than ready. Today we are ready to vote on the questi on if you would 
p ermit us to deal with the motion dealing with the division question. Thank 
you. 
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THE CHAIRMAN (Mr. Fraser ) :  I think it may be a little early. Mr . Sibbeston . 

Political Matters Must Be Br ought Up To Date 

MR. S IBBESTON: (Speaks in Slave_v. ) 

Mr . Chairman, I just want to say as a Member of the unity committee, I consider 
myself fortunate to have had the unique ex per ience of being  involved as we have 
been in visiting al l major native groups and thei r leaders and to sit d own and 
help write the report, because we were able to meet with the leaders of all 
major organizations in the North. We, I think tried to capture or get the most 
up-to-d ate thinking of people. Reports, particularly reports on political 
situations of people and what they think about political matters can become 
outdated very quickly because politics is always in a state of flux. However, 
I feel we were able to capture the political state of the North as it ex isted 
for the past summer and f all of 1 9 80. I want to say that I am proud to have 
been part of the unity committee and to have been involved with the find ings, 
conclusions and recommend ations. 

I am proud to h ave been in volved with persons on the committee who had the 
guts to say what many people would not have d ared to say. What the unity 
committee had d ar ed to say was that the majority of people in the North, 
particularly the native people, are not satisfied with the terr itorial 
gover nment and they want change. That is the message pure and simple. I t  is 
n ot somethin g that we as Members of the unity committee dreamed up or m ade up 
j ust because of our own feelings. We  have been truthful I think in telling 
you ex actly what the native lead er s have said . If  the truth hurts you or if 
you d o  not like it it is too bad . The momentum is there and you will have to 
go with the waves or you will be drowned out by the wave or the momentum. 
Undoubtedly, these feelings by native people have been expressed before, but 
either they were not understood by those in power or did not tell the truth 
in r elaying the feelings, or these feelings were simply suppressed by those 
in power and imposed their own will and thought that these feelings would go 
away, but as we know these basic feelings that people feel d o  not go away. 
The Dene Nation spoke of it in terms of a n ationalistic feeling and we also 
saw for the last few d ays the d etermination of the Inuit people and how could 
anyon e not sense that and how can anyone d are stand in the way of it? I just 
feel that it is impossible to tr y to stop. 

Federal Gover nment Challenged I n  Past 

There have been some people in the past in the North who have listened to 
native people and who have under stood and relayed the message as tr ue as they 
heard it. People like Judge Morrow had a lot of empathy f or people in the 
North. He challen ged the fed eral government in the Paulette caveat case of 
19 7 3  and he wanted to k now the truth about the treaties which the federal 
government made with the Dene people in 1 9 21 . He went amongst the people and 
found out the Dene peop le's v ersions of what the treaty was and he came 
to the con clusion that native people saw the treaties as peace treaties only. 
They d id not give up their land s and because of this he stated that there was 
strong evid ence that treaties as such may not have ex tinguished the aboriginal 
rights of the Dene people in the Mackenzie Valley. That d ecision has altered 
the course of events in the North. I t  has made the federal government 
reluctantly agree to renegotiate aboriginal r ights in the North with both the 
Dene and the Met is people. We have also had . . .  

THE CHAI RMAN (Mr. Fraser ) :  Coul d you slow d own a little bit please, 
Mr. Sibbeston? 
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MR. S IBBES TON : We have also had people li ke Judge Berger who have reall y 
li stened to  the peopl e and gave credence or gave credi bi li t y  to what was sai d 
by nat i ve people and told all of Canada and the world about the Dene people, 
the present state, thei r aspi rat i ons for self-government and t hei r st ruggle for 
self- determi nat ion and the danger of all of t hese aspi rat i ons bei ng t hwarted 
i f  a pi peli ne were to  go ahead. Agai n, such t ruths and recommendat i ons by 
Judge Berger had t he effect of delayi ng or stopping the large oi l pi peli ne 
down the Mackenz i e  Valley. Hi s deci si on had t he effect of changi ng the di rect i on 
of thi ngs i n  the North. How many t imes I have heard people i n  my area say 
" T hank God t hat t here was no pi peli ne, we st i ll have a chance to  get on our 
feet to  bui ld a good future" ? Unfortunately, we are agai n being threatened 
wi th a smaller pi peli ne only t hree years after Mr. Berger sai d no pipeli ne for 
at least ten years, but thi s topi c i s  one whi ch wi ll be dealt wi t h  on another 
day. 

Past Assembli es Insecure About Their Credibi li ty 

More recently, we have had Mr. Drury exami ni ng the poli t i cal si tuat i on i n  t he 
Nort h. You must remember t he poli tical state i n  whi ch Drury was appointed t o  
exami ne the poli t i cal si tuat i on i n  the North. If you could j ust thi nk back a 
few years, Berger had made hi s dec isi on i n  1976 .  The Dene Nation was mak i ng 
a strong b id  for a Dene government. The L egi slat i ve Assembly of the day 
supported t he pi peline whi le everybody i n  the Mackenzi e Valley was sayi ng no. 
The Assembly was also clamouri ng for const i tuti onal changes, not hi ng ori gi nal, 
just along the old t radi tional Westminster model of government, I guess because 
they were i nsecure and had some doubt s about thei r credi bi li ty. I remember 
them cont i nuously saying and beat i ng thei r breast s "We are t he only legi t i mate 
body i n  the North. " You know that saying. Whi le t hey were sayi ng this I 
guess a lot of people really doubted whether t hey were really t he only 
legi t i mate group representi ng people i n  the North. 

Also about t hat t i me the Dene N at i on and other groups were seri ously 
chall engi ng the status quo. They were sayi ng, " We do not recogni ze t hi s  
terri tori al government. " And Mr. Allmand one of the fi ne L i beral mi ni st ers of 
t he t i me appeared to  favour the establi shment of a government more i n  wi t h  the 
Dene t radi t i ons i n  the Mackenzi e Valley. In the mi dst of all of thi s - ­
part i cularly because the Dene people were i n  the eyes of some people i n  the 
North who were i n  power -- some people t hought the Dene people were get t i ng too 
strong, somebody or some group was able t o  get to t he Pri me Mini ster of Canada, 
Mr. Trudeau, at t hat t i me, and the message t o  hi m I am sure was clear, the 
nat i ve people, part i cularly the Dene people are get t i ng too st rong. They have 
t o  be stopped. They have to  be held i n  check. 

The present government system i n  the North had to  be rei nforced, so Trudeau 
picked the ri ght man for the job, t hat i s  Mr. Drury. He was an elderly man. 
He was not li kely to  be too ori gi nal or challengi ng. He di d not know anyt hi ng 
about the North, let alone the nat i ve people. All he knew was Ottawa, t he 
federal system of government . . .  

THE CHAIRMAN (Mr. Fraser) : Mr. Sibbeston, are you just about fi nished? Your 
t en mi nutes are up. 

MR. S IBBES TON: have got still q ui t e  a few pages. 

THE CHAIRMAN (Mr. Fraser) : You are goi ng to  have to  have unanimous consent. 
Agreed? 

- - -Agreed 

THE CHAIRMAN (Mr. Fraser) : There seems to  be unani mous consent. Please carry on. 

MR. S IBBES TON: Thank you. I wi ll forever be grateful. I t hank you for 
li steni ng. 
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Emotions Of People Omitted From Drury Report 

So ,  I was talking about Mr. Drury. Mr. Drury was the guy that Ottawa picked to 
put the native people in their place and that is how we got the Drury r eport. 
In my view, Drury did an ex cellent job of supporting the status quo, but he did 
a poor job of getting h is hands on the pulse of what people in the North r eally 
said because I think if he did h e  would come to the same conclusions as us. 
Speaking generally of the Drury report, th e report does a good job of 
recommending the status quo. Mr. Drury's r eport is a very logical, well 
r easoned outline of what sh ould be done. The problem is th at Mr. Drury h as 
missed the spirit, emotion, the nationalistic feeling of people. That is why 
Mr. Drur y's r eport is not a very credible report amongst native people. 

When dealing with political matters it is not just a rational undertaking. 
Emotion, spirit and deeply rooted feelings are as important as the rationale 
of th ings. Mr. Drury did not capture this emotion and spirit which is prevalent 
in the North. Just because you make it so that people can do th ings lik e take 
control of local governments, it does not mean that they will. As an ex ample, 
native people in Fort Simpson see the band council as their r epresentatives. 
People do not see the village cou ncil as their representative body. A good 
example of what Drury has done th roughout his report is to say " Well, if you 
give more power to such bodies as the village councils then people will respond 
and take over r esponsibility. " It is not quite like that. People must have 
emotional and r eal feelings for a body or for m of government befor e they take 
par t in it and people must be part of setting up the local body if it is to be 
r ecognized and respected by them. 

Native People Must Help In Setting Up Government 

I gu ess what I am saying is that Drury was trying to take an existing body, the 
terr itorial government, which was imposed on the North and wh ich is not accepted 
by native people and saying if we change it here and ther e it will become 
acceptable and it just is not that easy however. Obviously, the Inuit people 
rejected this approach to constitutional changes in th e North. They do not 
want this government. They want their own government, Nunavut. They said they 
would have liked to h ave set up a government based on Inuit tradition and 
custom, bu t they h ave made a major compromise in proposing a ter ritorial style 
of government. 

The important thing in fact and which will probably make Nunavut acceptable to 
the people is that it is the I nuit people who are setting up the 
government, so in the future if the government in the West in our part of the 
North is to be acceptable, the native people must have a major hand in setting 
it up. Otherwise it will fail again. Th ose are all of my general comments 
and now I have specific positions which I will deal with when we get to the 
recommendations. 

THE CHAIRMAN (Mr. Fraser) :  Thank you, Mr. Sibbeston. 
and we will take a 1 5  minute r ecess for coffee. 

---SHORT RECESS 

recogniz e the clock 
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THE CHAIRMAN ( Mr. Fraser): The Chair recog ni zes a quorum. We will continue 
with the unity committee report and I have Ms. Cournoyea on the list. Hon. 
Mr. Butters, you have some further comments. Maybe you can continue until we 
g et Ms. Cournoyea back. 

HON. TOM BUTTERS: Th ank you, Mr. Ch airman. I woul d li ke to continue wi th what 
I was saying before the ten mi nutes ran out. I would j ust li ke to repeat because 
I do not thi n k  some Members ei ther h eard or understood what I was sayi ng 
relative to the positi on taken by the Eighth Assembly on the matter of di visi on. 
The Assembly members did not turn their back on th e i mp ortance of the questi on 
of divisi on. The position at that time was j ust that it was of such si g n i fi cance 
and so important and possi bly so potenti ally divisive that i t  was not di scu ssed 
but recommended to be referred to th e Prime Mi ni ster's speci al represen tative. 
Now there h as been some criticism levelled i n  th e last few minutes by some 
Members relati ve to th e degree of accuracy of the speci al representative's 
report and sug g esti ng that i t  may not have been complete i n  its scope, but I 
do not th i nk you can fault th e special representati ve, Mr. Drury, for that. I 
think the two maj or organi zations, Inui t Tapi ri sat and the D ene Nation, di d not 
avail themselves of the opportuni ty to participate in that exerci se. 

Analogy Does Not Truly Represent Si tuation 

One of the analogies that was used a number of ti mes last week during th e 
representati ons was, " It is ti me for a divorce or if not a di vorce at least 
a separation and if not at least a separation then we should be, the Territories 
should be living in separate rooms. " This is a very unfortunate analog y. 
Certai nly di vorce or separati on i s  a very sad occurrence for the human condition 
and I tend to think really that th e an alog y does n ot truly represent the situati on 
in which we i n  th e Northwest Terri tories fi nd ourselves today. As Members 
poi nted out, there was no mutual consent. It was n ot a case of consenti ng 
adults g oing into any ki nd of arrangement. 

We are h ere today more i n  the situation of a family of young people g rowing 
up, becoming aware of their manhood and thei r womanhood and seeking the 
independence that that state bri ng s to them, offers to them. So that I see the 
Territories really as a family and as a · family grows up the hmi ly d i vi des, i t  
separates and they g o  their own way, but they never forg et that they were part 
of a fami ly. They di d not ask to be born into that family. They did not ask 
for thei r mother and father or brother and si ster, but that i s  the way thi ng s  
came about and this is the way i t  is in the Northwest Territories today. We 
sit tog ether, the 22 of us, as one fami ly. We did not ask to sit together 
possibly but here we are and I think th at the Eighth Assembly h ad a very good 
obj ective i n  mi nd which was, even with our various backgrounds and our di fferent 
upbring ing that we should work tog ether and co-operate i n  th e best interests 
of all our people, all th e people in the Northwest Terri tori es. 

N. W. T. Like A Growi ng Family . 

So, as I say, I think the sugg estion of di vorce is real ly not a g ood one. 
think that we should l ook at i t  as a g rowing family who will, when the time is 
rig ht g o  our own way, but i n  so doing , not forg et our origins and not forget 
our early attachments so that the uni fied approach that Mr. Braden referred to 
20 or 3 0  mi n utes ago can occur. When th e people of the Territori es wish to make 
a j oi nt approach to the Government of Canada it will be possible. So that I look 
to th e situation where i t  would appear it is recog ni zed we must now g row apart 
or we will soon g row apart and l et u s  recog nize thi s and take steps to effect 
it, but i t  wil l not happen all at once. It is not g oing to happen tomorrow. 
It is not g oing to happen next year and let us realize that. Let us plan 
tog ether and work tog ether and achi eve the obj ective which seems the one that 
everybody who has spoken in th e last four days agrees is b efore us, which i s  a 
divi sion of th e Northwest Territories as we know i t  today. 
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THE CHAIRMAN (Mr. Fraser) : Than k you, Hon . Mr. Butters. Ms. Cournoyea. 

MS. COURNOYE A: Mr. Chairman, I think what we are doi n g  is goin g aroun d in 
circles because almost everythi n g  that has been sai d from the very begin ning of 
this debate i s  bein g repeated again ; we should n ot continue to do that. Also 
to meet the general ideas of this paper I am just wonderin g an d I guess I was 
a bi t concerned that the un ity commi ttee in its travels an d in its deliberation s 
around the Northwest Territories, why they had n ot shown a stronger case for 
regi on al government. It does n ot matter which way the Territories go, but it 
did n ot seem to address the real need to strengthen the region al con cept of 
govern men t. 

Concept Of Regional Govern men t Has Been Neglected 

It seems to me when we talk about Nunavut or what is proposed by the Dene there 
is an idea that there is a total con cept but n ot really addressin g how we 
handle an d bring that govern men t  close to the people who are bein g governed. 
There are man y differen t  ways that I feel that this idea can fit into Nunavut 
or Den endeh, but i t  does n ot seem to me that the unity committee had really p ut 
this in the report or the con cep t of reali zing good govern men t by havin g these 
regi onal govern ments within a bigger government. This is not in relation ship to 
sayin g that there should n ot be Nun avut or there should not be an y of the other 
k i n ds of govern ment or a division, but to give i deas that n o  matter which way 
you go that this is neglected in the present system. We have a govern men t system 
but it seems that everythin g is tied to Yellowkn ife. 

These are the kinds of concerns that everyon e has when they talk about how to make 
a decision . How do I have control over my life and how do I make the laws that 
govern my everyday living? Now there is the idea that the country is too big, 
but then there is the n ex t  stage within that, addressin g the need to make sure 
that when we move into the n ex t  stage we have the idea of makin g it more 
sophisticated. These are the kinds of things that cause fear. The fear comes 
that everythin g will be the same. 

However, I thi nk what has happened over the past is that everyone has learned 
and they are not going to try to make the same mistakes. They are n ot goin g to 
try to say, " Well, we are goin g to just transfer an d just draw a line. " A 
certain group of people have an idea an d they h ave a desire and all the m i stakes 
that have been made probably would not be made again so there is n o  need to have 
a fear about this because when we talk about how you give con trol to a 
commun ity, the p resent govern ment continuously makes option s available that 
are n ot really opti on s at all. They are very p oor options. 

Presen t S ystem Not Moving Ahead 

It gives you the feelin g that something is movin g ahead, but i t  really is n ot. 
It might be an other water truck. So  the p resent system has n ot worked an d to 
have a fear of sayi ng, " Well, let us not divide because we really need each 
other" an d have a fear of a division sayin g to everybody, " Well, we do n ot 
wan t you",  I do n ot thin k that is the point. The p oint is saying, "Well, let us 
put i t  on a groun d we can go forward on . "  I do n ot i n  my mind feel con fiden t, 
certainly i n  the paper presented by the Dene Nation sayin g " Well, you turn the 
forestry over to the territorial govern men t. " I was very surprised at that. 
Maybe they will give in to you. I know I may be suspicious of people, but to me 
once the trees are given to the territorial govern ment, the Dene will n ot get it 
and I can say that in the present system they will n ot. S o  we should n ot try to 
be too n ice about these thi n gs an d try to make thin gs so lovable because it i s  
n ot. We are tryin g to deal with government an d we should n ot be embarrassed about 
our feelin g of divorce or whatever it is because that is the way life is. The 
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go vernment has to go to the people and the people have to control the laws, 
they have to be able to set quotas in areas where they are. They have to have 
a right to do that and they should no t have a father coming down to them when 
they are 40 years o ld saying, " This is the only way you can do it. " 

Concept Of Government Of The People 

I think, basically, if yo u think o f  it in the concept o f  go vernment o f  the 
peo ple yo u will no t have any fear. I have no fear abo ut what is being presented 
here and as a representative o f  the Western Arctic region I would say po ssibly 
I should have the greatest fear o f  all because we may be squeezed into the o cean 
by many facto rs but I have no fear o f  that . . .  

MR. PATTERSON: Hear, hear'. 

MS. COURN OYEA: . . .  because I know we are mo ving pro gressivel y to decide we are 
going to do something. All the details have no t been wo rked o ut and they wil l no t 
be worked o ut for a perio d o f  time, but the request is saying let us make a 
decision, more than how many water trucks we are going to have and how many 
half-assed ro ads we are going to  build. Let us make a decision where we can 
mo ve fo rward and then we will work o ut the details as we go along because we do 
no t have all the answers, but we have to take that o ne step forward. 

- -- Applause 

THE CHAIRMAN ( Mr. Fraser) : Thank you, Ms. Courno yea. Any further co mments? 
Mr. Wah-Shee. 

HON. JAMES WAH-SHEE: Yes. Thank you, Mr. Chairman, I would like to make some 
brief comments regarding the recommendation o f  the unity co mmittee. At the 
o utset I would like to state that I will suppo rt the division into two 
territo ries. My reaso n being, o f  course, that I have already stated earlier 
that the aspirations o f  the residents o f  the East are legitimate and they have 
been discussing this particular p ro po sition I gather for the last six years. 

Problem Of Access Will Continue To Exist 

I think that some things o ught to be said at this point in time because I think 
that fro m the previous sessions co mments have been made regarding the present 
set-up, that it is no t adequate. We have problems in transpo rtation, co mmunica­
tion, access to the Ministers, the kinds o f  propo sals that are co ming forth 
fro m l ocal go vernment o r  lack of it, whatever the case may be. I wo uld like to 
respo nd to the remarks that were made by the hon. Member fro m Keewatin South 
regarding the access to the Ministers in Yellowknife. I think that that k ind 
o f  problem, I can see it co ntinually existing even though you have Frob isher Bay, 
your capital o f  Nunavut territo ry when somebody residi ng in Holman Island wants 
to have access to the Ex ecutive. 

I may add that the transpo rtatio n system and the co mmunicatio n system that ex ists 
in the No rthwest Terri to ries is no t the respo nsibility o f  this particular 
Legislature nor the territo rial administration. These particular systems were in 
place long before the Legislative Assembly decided to remove itself fro m Ottawa 
to the No rthwest Te�ri tori es. So I th i rik  that the inadequacies regarding the 
transpo rtatio n ro utes, having to travel from one community to the o ther and 
to go from Baffin to Yellowknife really should no t be used as an excuse to dump 
o n  the West as I see it. I thi nk that we sympathize with inadequacies regarding 
these two systems, but even tho ugh yo u do get your o wn territory I do no t think 
that those two areas will be transferred to yo ur legislature because at the 
present time it is a federal responsibility. I think that point o ught to be 
made regarding the influence that the residents o f  the E ast will be able to 
use the influence their future legislature will have o n  the kind o f  pro blems 
that exist in these two areas with the federal go vernment. 
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The other thing too, is that we have been spending as Ministers, some time in 
the East. We have not had that muc h time to spend in the West, so I certainly 
look forward to spending more time in the Mac kenzie Valley. It is not only 
that I am comfortable there but that is my part of the country. So I think 
that the time real ly has come and I am extremely happy that we have come to 
this point to really address the issue head-on, because it has been an issue 
for a long time. I think that the matter should have been brought up a long 
time ago but due to a variety of reasons it never c ame to a head until now. 

No Additional Powers From Federal G overnment 

The other thing I would like to comment on is that even thoug h we do go  our 
separate ways hopefully, that the present authority and the present powers 
that we have are really not adequate. I t hink that even thoug h you do c reate 
two territories, you will not, I think at the present time, have additional 
powers transferred from the federal g overnment to this Legislature even thoug h 
you do divide. I think that what we have to c onsider in g oing our separate 
ways in the East and the West -- and I like the sug gestion that has been made 
by ITC that there is still room for future co-operation and a working 
relationship between the E ast and the West. I think that that is a very g ood 
idea, because in order to g ain further provinc ial type of responsibility in a 
jurisdiction it will take one hell of a fight on the part of the residents of 
the North with O ttawa. I do not think that we are that naive to think that it 
is g oing to be all that easy and this is in no way to try to convince or to 
try to justify unity at all, I do not think that we have passed that point. 
We have c ome to the point where we would like to g o  our own way. 

Elected Representatives Should Give Full Support 

The other thing , of course, is that when we are dealing and addressing the 
issue of two separate territories, what would be a very g ood approac h is that 
in dealing with the recommendations of the unity report, it would be a g ood 
g esture on the part of the elected representatives in this Leg islature to c ome 
out 1 00 per cent behind the basic concept of division. I think that that would 
be the most appropriate way to address the issue because I think that there 
are some of us from the West and we feel that we do have the right as Canadian 
c itizens , not as Inuit or Dene or Metis, but by the mere fact that we have our 
right in the North as northern residents to partic ipate. I think that it is 
onl y appropriate that all residents ought to partic ipate and this is not the 
way, to say that they will not support the division of the Territories. 

I would think that the majority of the territorial residents would support the 
division question. It is really a matter of the approac h that we ought to 
consider and for my part I believe that we ought to continue -- we will be 
required to �a -operate anyway in the interim period , because the mofe united peopl·e 
are in the North reg arding a particular issue which is so fundamentally important 
to all r�sidents of the Territories, we have to support eac h other , because 
the next step of c ourse is to convinc e Ottawa that this is the leg itimate concern 
of the people in the Northwest Territories. This is what we want. It pays, 
I believe, to remain tog ether. We  may differ in our views and on a lot of 
other thing s but in this oartic ular c ase I would hope that we are flexible 
enoug h to realize that a united position c oming forth from this Leg islature 
will have a positive effect. I do not want to even disc uss the various options 
that some of the Members from the other side of the House have indicated, that 
these are basically some of the views of the West anyway. I have already 
indic ated at the outset that I will support the division into two separat e 
territories. Thank you. 

---Applause 

THE CHAIRMAN (Mr. Fraser): Thank you, Mr. Wah-Shee. Mr. Appaqaq. 



- 874 -

In Favour Of Splitting The Territories 

MR. APPAQAQ: ( Translation) Thank you, Mr. Chairman. My main concern is that 
we have heard that there has been a concept of divi ding the Territories for 
quite some ti me now. How are we to improv e our responsibilities? It has been 
i ndi cated today by a sugg esti on that if we were to divide and improv e our 
responsibil ities -- I will use as an example that when we are in the Inui t 
homel and I have experi enced thi s and I will mention it, that the Canadian 
parliament makes legislation that di rectly affects us and the leg islation is in 
force the foll owi ng day, For exampl e, say the Inuit were allowed to catch only 
two char per year and we have 365 days i n  the year and if you do not have any 
money or financial assistance you are just going to die off and this is how 

. we are treated when we are in our own Inuit land. 

When we hear the issue of splitting the Territories and I hav e heard that the 
public will have the opportunity to voice thei r opinion and I am in support of 
the splitting of the Territories. I as a Member of the Legislative Assembly, 
I do not have the experience in dealing with the polit i cal i ssue as an Inuk. 
You probably wi l l  not be able to understand the Inuit system, what I guess I will 
call our political system and I am much i n  favour in splitting the Territories 
if the Inuit opi nion would be voiced more frequently in the Leg i slature. I have 
heard that as long as the Inuit' s  concerns are brought up i n  the Assembly that 
they wil l at times be fav ourable and at other times they will not be favourable 
but they will still be alive when this comes into reality and I will see that 
this comes into reality in the v ery near future. I j ust wanted to m ention that 
I am in favour of the splitting of the Territories and we are dwelling at g reat 
leng th on the splitting of the Territories. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

THE CHAIRMAN (Mr. Fraser): Thank you, Mr. Appaqaq. Mr. Nerysoo. 

Portraying The Positive Side Of Div ision 

HON. RICHARD NERYSOO: Yes, I thi nk my own position with regard to the issue of 
division i s  one of support and that I think the one thing that this Assembly has 
to do is portray the very positiv e note to divisi on. I think it is imperativ e 
that when we g o  back to those constituencies that we represent that our 
di scussion on divi sion and on the issue should be one of a positiv e note. I think 
that people are bringing up other issues that are v ery important to address. 
think that it is also very important that our working relationship in this House 
becomes very -- I g uess close -- especially on an issue where it has been so many 
years that people have talked on the issue of di v i sion and v ery little, if 
anything has been done on the issue and so other people have broug ht it up, 
think this is the first tim e in the history of the Northwest Territories that it 
real ly has been a discussion issue and though it has been one where at times 
I have been frustrated, I would like to and I thi nk somehow express my 
appreciation to those people who have brought this idea for discussion up. I t  has 
been an important issue and we have to now beg i n  the work. The position has been 
cl ear I thin� , but I think that it should include the people of the Northwest 
Territories. It is important because we need the support of all people. 

HON. TOM BUTTERS: Hear, hear� 

HON. RICHARD NERYSOO: I think when we address this issue in future, sort of 
structure the path which we are g oing to follow, I think that we require support 
for one another and a support that the people in our constituencies will g i ve. 
I think that is important. I only hope that as Mr. Wah-Shee has stated that we 
will i n  fact dev elop a v ery, v ery good working relationship. Whether there is a 
Nunavut territory or there is Denendeh, whatever the resul ts may be, we must be 
v ery clear about the streng th that we hav e tog ether to fig ht people who may not 
want the thi ng s that we have or will want to g et and we think that we should 
g et. I think that is i mportant. 
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At the same time I think that we should address the probl ems that we have today 
and try to make _the situation in both terri tories or how m any territories we 
create here ver) strong and very viable so that people in fact have the author ity 
and the strengtf •i . tho se areas to f u ncti on and they should i n  fact have the 
supp ort of the Assembly. We m u st make i t  very clear to p eople that we are will ing 
to work together to i mp rove the situation up n ere. I think that is where we are 
going to in fact win out in th e end sort of thing. Again I stress the fact that 
I do and will su , ;>ort the p osition, the p rinci p le of division. Thank you. 

THE CHAIRMAN (Mr. Fraser) : Thank you, Mr. Nerysoo. 

---Applause 

Any further comments? Mr . Kilabuk. 

Working Together Toward Progress 

MR. KILABUK: (Translation) Mr. Chairman, I have had my hand up for quite some 
time but I guess you di d not see me. I was thinking that maybe only the unity 
committee was supp osed to com ment. Mr. Chairman, the unity committee chairman, 
I would like to th ank him very much ,and the other commi ttee Member s who have 
rep orted a clear p aper. I feel that some things are not p resent in here that 
were discussed and should be p u t  in the p aper too, mostly the p olitical 
development of the Northwest Territories. What I have thought myself is 
about the regional government in Frobisher and other p arts. They all have to get 
consensus on every p rogram or whatever, but this has been a p roblem that has 
been a concern of mine and also even if we say something to the Yellowknife p eople 
,�e have a p roblem and we have to consult with Ottawa first because of the vast 
territory. I also feel that if Nunavut was to become a reality and we all have 
different dialects so far, they would be abl e to get what they want from the 
p arliament i n Ottawa. 

We realize thi s is developing at the p resent time. We hear from the comments 
of the other Members in the future it has been realized that the government is 
divided here today but the people who want to work together should be working 
together. I do not understand today the committee has talked about the 
different native groups. Maybe we will be able to work better instead of 
being against each other. I am very hap p y  today that the native group s have 
been tal king to us and are giving a p lace to work and the unity committee has 
given us something to get started, but I am sorry about the Baffin Regional 
Council and I want to be informed now about the rep ort of the unity committee 
that is our concern because I want the people in the Territories to find out 
more about this. I also am in support of this unity committee's recommendation. 
So what we are talking about today is p rogress and the people who wrote the 
rep ort should i nform the people about it and give them something to work with. 
They have to consult more with everybody, native group s, and I thank you very 
much, the people who wrote this and I woul d be in sup port of it too. 

THE CHAIRMAN (Mr. Fraser): Thank you, Mr. Kilabuk. Hon. Mr. Stewart. 

Division Is Inevitable 

HON. DON STEWART: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I have listened intently to the 
debate and the p resentations made so far and I have firstly no fears of division 
of the Territories. However, it is not a simple division that we are talking 
about. If we were dividing the Territories because of the distances involved 
and the difference in the culture  of the two areas, this p rovides me with no 
difficulty. However, as we progress it is evident that all of the native 
organi zations wish at the same time to exercise their p rerogative for a new type 
of government and setting up so many new things all at one go-round. 
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I sug g est to you that I think that the division is inevitable. It will haDpen 
and it will happen soon. B y  ''soon" it probably means to the bureaucracy of 
Ottawa some time in the next five to ten years. But my bigg est concern is that 
in the interim that the prog ress that the territorial Assembly has made to date 
on tr ying to g et control and authority over various thing s in the Territories 
will stop and we will be in a state of limbo until such a time as these various 
areas are set up. 

Now probably with the state the Territories is in maybe this is inevitable, 
maybe this has to happen. It is quite possible, but I warn you that in the 
process there is g oing to be some g ain, but there is certainly in a five, ten, 
15 year period there are g oing to be losses and the loss will be control over 
many of the resource based types of thing s we are looking for. I can see 
Ottawa just closing the door and saying " Fine, we are g oing to use this political 
separ ation, this division question as the order of the day and everything else 
is g oing to be put back into abeyance. " I have seen it happen so often when 
something of this mag nitude r aises its head. So we have a job to do but there 
is a pr ice that you will pay for it and that is j ust as sure as you are sitting 
in this chamber today. Thank you. 

THE CHAIRMAN (Mr . Fraser ) :  Thank you, Mr. Stewart. Any further comments of 
a g eneral nature? Mr. McLaughlin. 

Basi c Areas Of Concern 

MR. McLAUGHLIN: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I would just like to say that I too 
am basically in favour of a division of the Ter ritories, but, as I expressed, 
I have fears about what will happen when the Nor thwest Territories Act is 
amended or repealed and replaced by something else. I am concerned about basic 
border problems which may not be acceptable to some of the g r oups but these 
things can be hammered out. What I think has to be done is a territorial 
plebiscite has to be taken to get suppor t of all the people of the Territories 
because that will make our case more important and be understood more by the 
federal g overnment if all of the people in the Northwest Territories vote to 
divide the Territories, which I am sure they will. 

I am also concerned in some of the areas Mr. Stewart is, that we have got to 
also keep pressing at the same time for more responsible g overnment for this 
Assembly and those responsibilities can then be passed on to the new territorial 
g overnments which will be created down the r oad in a timeframe that could be 
way longer than some of us would like to hope. So I think it is very important 
that the g overnment continues to address the issues. I think we have to l ook 
at thing s like the Nor man Wells pipeli ne, being very ag g ressive to make sure 
that in resource developments like Nor man Wells and B aker Lake that the people 
of the Northwest Territories g et something out of developments like that. I f  
these developments go  ahead without our consent, which could happen if Nor man 
WelT s can g o  ahead possibly the uranium mine at B aker Lake could g o  ahead, we 
have g ot to continue to fig ht these thing s and tr y to g et something out of 
them if they are g oing to g o  ahead. That is g oing to take an ag g ressive 
Executive Committee supported by all the people in the House. 

More Power To The People Of The N . W. T. 

So, I think it is very important that we fill these two empty seats with two 
Inuit Members so they can take a role in helping run this g overnment and that 
while they are there they can work with the Executive Committee to streng then 
our position in the federal field and in federal relations and at the same 
time work toward a separation into two territor ies which would be beneficial 
to all of us. In other words, we should improve our position as we g o  dur ing 
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the life of this Assembly. Let us take advantage of the co-operation and 
consensus we have seen to date in this Assembly to g ive more powers to the 
people of the Territories throug h this Assembly so it can be passed on to the 
two territorial g overnments. 

THE CHAIRMAN (Mr. Fraser): Th ank you, Mr. McLaughlin. Any further comments? 
There being no further comments, do  you wish to g o  throug h -- M r. MacQuarrie. 

MR. MacQUARRIE: If no others have g eneral comments, I would like to have five 
or so minutes to make a statement before we begin the recommendation by 
recommendation stud y of the report. 

THE CHAIRMAN (Mr. Fraser) :  Thank you, Mr. MacQuarrie. There does not seem to 
be anybody else and you can wind up th e de bate and we will g o  into the committee 
report recommendations. Thank you. 

Full- blood ed Committee Report 

MR. M acQUARRI E: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I had thought of calling a final 
meeting of the special committee on u nity here in Frobisher Bay in order to 
try to have Members on th e committee agree on some strateg y for guiding the 
committee's report through the House. As chairman, I finally d ecided ag ainst 
that. I have not tried and will not try to orchestrate the committee ' s  
presentation. Despite M r. Nickerson's reference to style which may have contained 
the implication that the report is a one man report and despite Mr. McCallum's 
use of sports logic that red uced it to a two man minority report, I will assert 
confidently that this is as much a full-blooded committee report as such a 
species can ever possibly be. 

---Applause 

M embers observed tog ether, listened together, talked together and worked together 
and decided together as much as it is possible for five d ifferent peopl e, all 
of whom h ave other commitments and interests to look after as well, to do. 
At the final meeting I believe that a particul arly thoroug h job was done of 
review and analysis and Members ag reed then that a certain course, th e one that 
is charted in this report was the best to follow, not only were the 
recommend ations ag reed upon but some of the ideas which should appear in the 
bod y of the report were ag reed upon as well. 

Now, if there are subsequent chang es in the opinions of some Members I do  not 
find that to be an embarrassment to this committee, nor an ind ictment either of 
the process the committee followed in d oing its work or of th e final results of 
its d eliberations. R ather it is merely a reflection and an affirmation of the 
real complex ities and difficulty of our northern political situation. Having 
said th at thoug h, I will also su g gest that in the end , cynics might very well be 
surprised when they discover the amount of true ag reement that does ex ist within 
the committee with respect to this report. 

Aim Of Report To Win Political S tability 

As we discuss it over the next day or so I invite all Members to read the report 
thoroug h ly and to g ive it thoug h tful consideration, that is to the bod y of the 
report as well as to the recommend ations, and to try to appreciate the full 
implication of everything that is stated. Th e aim of the report is to try to 
win political stability. Because of this you as Members can be sure that there 
is no intention of slipping by you. That attempt would be f oolish in that it 
woul d ultimately d efeat the object of the entire exercise. So your committee 
asks you to work hard to fully appreciate the import of what has been said in its 
report and if you do  that you will recog nize, for instance, that recommendations 
one, two and three are not mere motherhood statements at all as they have been 
described , bu t rather -- and that they are not either expressions on an airy 
fairy kind of philosophy th�t has no connection at all to reality, but rather 
that they are ex pressions of value that can shape the destiny of the North. 
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If you a ppreciate the import of what ha s been said you will recognize that  
recommenda tion number two, for instance, is a powerful recommendation t hat ha s 
important implica tions and Mrs. Sorensen is a bsolutely right in her ana lysis on 
that a ccount. If it is a dopted this is t he kind of implica tion it has. Then 
the Assembly in later establishing a n  Ea stern Arctic ter ritory if that is what 
it chooses to do, would not be co-op er ating in t he creat ion of two territor ies 
a s  the Hon. Ja mes Wah-Shee suggested t he da y before yesterday, I believ e, but 
rather it would be helping to crea te  one ter ritory with a potentially long-term 
politica l future a nd t hen leaving a reduced residua l territory ou t of which 
a nother territory or ter ritories might be crea ted a nd I wil l say surely wil l be 
crea ted in t he future. That is a significant difference a nd it ha s importa nce 
with respect to, for insta nce who should vote in a ny referendum on the 
establishment of an Eastern Arctic territory. 

Diversity Of Opinion 

Finally, l et me say t hat  some of you ma y have been tempted to underestimate t he 
thoroughness of the committee's work a nd perhaps the extent of its judgments. 
I do tru st though that in the past four days of hearing witnesses t hat  you a nd 
a ll of the people of the Northwest Territories will have hea rd for yoursel ves 
a s  your committee hea rd, t he strength and momentum of t he movement to est ablish 
an E a stern Arctic territory. I t rust that you a nd t he people of the Nort h  as 
well will ha ve seen for yourselves as your commit tee saw, the diver sity of 
opinion that exists a bout politica l development in the Northwest Terr itories 
a nd that you will have recognized a s  your committee recognized t he ut ter 
impossibility of fully satisfying every pa rty of interest in this ma t ter. 

Speaking in my capacity as cha irma n of the specia l commit tee then, I t r u st that 
as legisla tors who a re responsible for the well-being of the peopl e of the 
entire Northwest Terr itories t ha t  we will, a ll of us, for t he next short while 
put a side any hurt f eelings that we might ha ve or personal gr ieva nces, that we 
will set a side our pa rt icula r identities a s  Members of ethnic groups a nd a s  
representa tives of particul a r  regions to the extent that it is possibl e, and 
that we will try to choose a pa th through the da rk  polit ical woods that is the 
best pa th in the view of the tota l situation confronting us, for a ll of the 
people of the Northwest Territ ories. 

An Accepta ble Compromise 

Your special committee on unity ha s a l r ea dy done some tr ail blazing a nd I 
think it ha s found tha t path. Some, considering it ma y la ment t hat  the path 
the committee ha s laid out runs too nea r a precipice, others t hat  it is only 
a rutted trail a nd not a g r a velled byway, others t hat  it runs a longer distance 
than is rea lly necessa ry and there a re surel y t hose who wil l hesit ate to t a ke 
the first step a long that path beca use they cannot see cl ea r l y  its end. Despit e 
these concerns, Mr. C ha irman, I believe that in t he final a na lysis it is very 
likel y, certainly with opport u nity for refinement that it is t he best pat h 
open to us, or putting it a nother way, tha t considering a ll of t he diverse 
opinions t hat  we have hea rd  that the report ma y very wel l be a n  a cceptable 
compromise. 

So, a s  cha irman of the committee, a ga in I woul d a sk a ll of you to  give some 
very serious considerat ion to supporting the principl es of t he report and 
ther e is alwa ys the opportunity for a mendment in deta il s, but supporting the 
principles of this report in their entirety. Perhaps the final result wil l not 
be all t ha t  you a s  individua ls or a s  a representa t ive of a region or a group 
would want, but in the end it ma y be t he best that a ll of us to t he extent 
tha t we have to  t a ke a ccount of politica l  rea lities, it may be the ver y best 
that a ll of us a r e  going to be a bl e to  get. If I ma y t a ke a moment, 
Mr. Cha irman, to  respond t o  certain qu estions t ha t  were r aised by other people, 
would tha t  be in order a t  this point before proceeding? 

THE CHAIRMAN (Mr. Fraser): Agreed. C a rry on, Mr. MacQuarrie. 
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A Territo ry With A Po tentially Long- term Po l itica l Future 

MR. MacQU ARRIE: With respect to some co mments of Mrs. S o rensen then, I woul d 
sa y th a t  she did hit o n  a very funda menta l principle a n d  I would invite a ll 
Members to  seriously co nsider wh ether they ca n a g ree with the perceptio n th a t  is 
sta ted in th e co mmittee's repo rt, because it does h a ve important  impl ica t io ns. 
I thought, h o wever, th a t  we would be dea lin g with tha t, when we begin to deal 
with recommenda tio n number two but if a n y  Member does no t feel tha t  t h a t  is 
t h e  case then I would certa inly suggest tha t  it be dealt with prior to going a ny 
further. Mrs. S oren sen did men tion tha t she t ho ugh t th a t  th e committee ha d 
seemed to indicate tha t Nun a vu t  wa s ready for provincia l sta tus and o f  course 
th a t  is no t wha t the committee feels, but I also bel ieve tha t th a t  is no t rea l ly 
what Mrs. S o rensen mea nt when she said it either, but simply t h a t  we h a ve 
identified a territory tha t  seems to h ave a potentially l o ng -term political 
future. 

With respect to so me co mments o f  Mr. Butters, I wo u l d  a gree very much tha t t h e  
a n a lo gy with respect to ma rria g e  i s  no t a g o od  a na lo g y  a nd tha t  t h e  analo g y  with 
respect to a g ro wing family is more a ccura te. I point tha t out now,  because 
la ter o n  in o ne o f  the recommenda tio n s  I will want to discuss why tha t  h a s  
pa rticula r impo rta nce. With respect to Mr. McCallum -- o h  yes, o ne o f  the points 
Mr. Patterso n did clear up wa s t h a t  it was the co mmittee o n  un ity. I do no t 
know h o w  many times I said th a t  o ver t h e  perio d of a yea r. Our aim wa s never 
bia sed in favo u r  o f  keeping t h e  territory tog ether, but to try to deal h onestly 
with th e who le subject a nd Mr. Pa tterso n wa s right in his observa tion. Also , 
I believe th a t  Mr. Mcc a llum wa s co ncerned a bout the a pproa ch th a t  we too k. I 
would sa y tha t we too k  t h a t  a ppro a ch, th a t  is dealing larg ely with na tive 
a ssociations beca use a s  Mr. Curley rig h t ly po inted out th a t  there h ad  been some 
neg lect of their positions by thi s go vernment a nd we wanted to rea ddress the 
i mba lance. I think that Mr. Mcc a llu m need n o t  worry th o u g h  because I believe th a t  
with the wa y we have a ppro a ched t h ings there will be a mpl e opportuni ty fo r tho se 
who disagree with wha tever the na tive a ssociations a re pro po sin g to make t h eir 
po ints o f  vi ew h ea rd. 

Wha t Th e Federa l Go vernment Will Allow 

With respect to Mr. Braden's co mments, h e  ra ised a p articul a rly importa n t  point 
a n d  priva tel y in di scussing th e paper it wa s ra ised to me by Mrs. So rensen a s  
well. And I had even t h o ug h t  a bo ut it myself a t  o ne time a nd then just did 
n o t  get it into the report a n d  th a t  is the question of wha t exa ctly will the 
federa l go vernment a llo w .  The rea son I had tho u g h t  of it before is beca u se 
Mr. Drury in his report does po in t o ut th a t  it is a t a sk o f  th e federa l � o y ernment 
to  let peo ple in the Territories kno w w heth er it h a s  a lready made decision s  
a bo ut  cert a in ma tters with respect to politica l develo pmen t  in t h e  Nort h west 
Territo ries, a s  a n  exa mple I mig h t  sa y holding the Hig h Arctic islands in 
reserve a s  a federal territory. If  they h a ve already made some decisio ns like 
that I think it would be very impo rta n t  f o r  us to know a nd for th e federa l 
g o vernm ent t o  tell us a nd so I a m  prepared to  move a t  th e end o f  o ur report 
wh ere it is sug g ested t h a t  we h a ve a deleg a tio n g o  to Ottawa to deliver the 
reco mmenda tio n s  th a t  at t h a t  time we a lso put in a n  urgent request th a t  they do 
info rm u s  wha t  the parameters are a s  fa r a s  they are co ncerned. Th a t  is no t to 
say that we sho uld necessarily a ccept t hem but we oug h t  to be a wa re of wh a t  th a t  
point o f  view is. 

Issue Of Regiona l Govern men t  

With respect to some comments o f  Ms. Courno yea a nd a lso Mr. McCa llum a n d  o t her 
people a s  well. They often wonder wh y it is th a t  we did not co nsul t more with 
co mmunities o r  with peo pl e, wh y did we not a ddress the issue o f  regio nal 
g o vernmen t .  Well , o n e  might a lso say w h y  did we not save th e wo rld? It is 
simply beca use we co u ld n o t .  We could no t i nclude everyt h ing. It wa s just 
impo ssible. Wha t we h a ve done I h o pe, is left the wa y o pen for tha t  kind of 
concern to be a ddressed effectively. In o th er words, if Ms. Co urnoyea believes 
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that it is very important for the questi on of r eg ional g overnment to be covered 
there wil l be  a constituti onal development committee which will be making 
available the opportuni ty for interested parties to say what kind of structure 
there should be in the Northwest Territor ies. 

If the question to us is why did we not r aise that alternative with ITC, I can 
tell you frankly we d id .  We raised it with the ITC board of directors, we raised 
it with each of the Inuit regional associations and I will hesitate to g ive you 
the answers that we received . In other words, they knew what they wanted and it 
was not reg ional g overnment. Now you might say they are wrong in wanting 
what they want, but I do  not think you can say we were wrong in not still 
insisting to them that they have regional g over nment. We wanted to lay out th e 
facts as they exist. 

Transfer Of Powers From The Federal Government 

Finally in this respect a comment that relates to something Mr. Stewart said and 
that is with regard to the tr ansfer of powers from the federal g overnment. 
Just as a per sonal assessment I would largely ag ree that that is what will 
h appen, that is, i n  a period of uncertainty about political d evelopment the 
federal government will almost cer tainly stop th e tr ansfer of powers to 
territorial governments. Perh aps it is not only for that reason thoug h.  In 
view of the reality of the world political situation th e fed eral g over nment may 
al ready h ave stopped transfer r i ng powers and certainly power s over resources, 
non-renewabl e r esources to terr itorial g overnments. At any r ate I believe h is 
assessment may be cor rect and when h e  says th ere is a risk if people insist on 
particular forms of political d evelopment, that they will not acquir e th e kind s 
of powers that they seem to hope to acquire. 

Well, I can only say that I believe cer tainl y in the case of ITC and others who 
are promoting a d ivision of the Ter ritories and the establish ment of an 
Eastern Arcti c territory that they are aware of that risk, but they have 
come to the conclusion that the ownership of resources at this time is not 
the most fundamental question to them, that it is a question of being able to 
establish a political j urisdiction that meets their need s and th rough which at 
a l ater time they can pur sue oth er objectives. So I think they were very wel l 
aware of that, but if they were not, cer tainly Mr. Stewart's warning will serve 
t o  make them aware. Thank you, Mr . Chairman. If there are any comments from 
others with respect to what I have said, I defer. If not, I am prepared to 
star t into the recommendations. 

THE CHAIRMAN (Mr . Fraser) : Th ank you, Mr . MacQuar r ie.  Is it the wish then 
of the Members that we g o  into the recommend ations starting with recommend ation 
one? Do you want to leave the preamble of the report and g o  into r ecommendation 
one? Mr . Braden. 

Importance Of First Pages Of Report 

HON. GEORGE BRADEN: Th ank you very much, Mr . Chairman. The chairman of the 
unity committee has ind icated in his remarks very eloquently that he believes 
the text of th e document as well as th e recommend ations is very important, so 
d o  not want this to be blanked out but I woul d prefer to see some systematic 
way of g oing th roug h at least the preamble which is the first four pages and 
then g etting into the recommend ations. It may be th at Members have no comments 
on pages one to four, but I do  not think we should exclude them . 

THE CHAIRMAN (Mr . Fr aser ) :  It does not matter to me. 
want to d iscuss it we can throw it open to the fl oor . 

Whatever way the Members 
Mr. Patterson. 
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MR. PATTERSON: The whole report has been read out, every word of it, and 
before that we had a week to consider it. I am beginning to wonder whether we 
are afraid to g et into the recommendations or not. I do not think we should 
g o  through the first four pages. Let us start with recommendation one and move 
along. 

THE CHAIRMAN (Mr. F raser) : Thank you, Mr. Patterson. Ms. Cournoyea. 

MS. COURNOYEA: I certainly do not mind g oing over the page as long as we do 
not unleash Mr. MacQuarrie on every word we g et. He unleashes himself and spends 
15 minutes telling us why we should not have said what we said, you know. It 
seems we have g one over this report at least ten times. I think Mr. Nickerson 
read it point by point and other people read it as well and if we take this 
long to g o  over a documen t we may never get division, but maybe that is the 
tactic. 

THE CHAIRMAN (Mr. Fraser) : Thank you, Ms. Cournoyea. Is it the wish of the 
committee then that we go  to recommendation one? Mr. Braden. 

HON. GEORGE BRADEN: Mr. Chairman, you know, I am not out to try and delay 
consideration of the recommendations, but there are some statements made i n  the 
first four pages where I would just like to ask a simple question of the 
committee. Maybe we can do it very quickly. Is this House ag reed that we can 
g o  through the first four pages? 

SOME HON. MEMBERS: Ag reed. 

THE CHAIRMAN (Mr. Fraser) : Thank you, Hon. Mr. Braden. I do not have a problem 
if somebody wan ts to ask questions on any of the pages, by all means. We will 
eventually g et to recommendation one i f  we do it like that. Mr. MacQuarrie. 

MR. MacQUARRIE: I am very happy to do that. The only thing I would say, of 
course, if you vote on the recommendations that whatever else is in the report, 
the Assembly obviously would not be committed to, but I do not say that as a 
means of trying to avoid answering for anything that is in the report and other 
Members would be happy to as well , at len g th if necessary. 

THE CHAIRMAN (Mr. Fraser) : Is it agreed that we go  through the preamble of the 
report starting at Appendix A? Ms. Cournoyea. 

MS. COURNOYEA: Can we have an ag reement that there is a time limit on how long 
it takes to answer any comments by Mr. MacQuarrie? Maybe 30 seconds. 

THE CHAIRMAN (Mr. Fraser) : Thank you, Ms. Cournoyea. Mr. MacQuarrie. 

MR. MacQUARRIE: I could ag ree if there was a time limit on the questions 
that were asked, Mr. Chairman. 

Appendix A Of Unity Report, Agreed 

THE CHAIRMAN (Mr. Fraser) : Appendix A of the report , is it ag reed? 

---Agreed 

Pages One To Three Of Unity Report, Agreed 

Page one, spec ia� commi ttee o n  unity, Hon. Mr. Braden. 

HON. GEORGE BRADEN: No comme� ts. 

THE CHAIRMAN (Mr. Fraser) : Page two, ag reed? 

-- - Ag reed 
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HON. GEORGE BRADEN: That was not so hard, was it? Mr. Chai rman, I am looki ng 
at the second paragraph beginning: " The maj or task f acing all parties in this 
endeavor is to reconcile, . . .  " etc. , etc. In the final line the committee on 
unity has indicated that one of the factors or one of the major tasks f acing 
all parties is the reconciliation f inally and I quote: " . . .  the geographic, 
demographic and economic realities of the northern situation" . Now I am 
wondering very briefly if the chai rman or perhaps someone on the committee 
could indicate to me what those are, and how they have been considered i n  the 
anal ysis in the report. 

THE CHAIRMAN (Mr. Fraser ) :  Thank you, Hon. Mr. Braden. Anybody want to answer 
that? I think it has to do with the preambl e. Mr. MacQuarrie. 

MR. MacQUARRIE: All right. I am happy to do it i f  other Members do not wish 
to and I w i ll try to be as brief as possibl e, especi all y for Ms. Cournoyea. 
With respect to the geography of the North it is obvious that there are vast 
di stances. This has been commented on by a number of peopl e in the debate 
already and that the means f or transportation across this vast terri tory are 
not readily avail able, particularly in the E astern Arctic. The demographic 
factors, the truth is that we  do have a relatively smal l population and I am 
always reminded when I see a baseball or a football game coming to us from 
Olympic Stadi um in Montreal that the entire population of the Northwest 
Territories could f it into that stadium and there woul d sti ll be about half 
the seats empty. S o  that i s  a demographic reali ty. As to what wei ght should 
be pl aced on it I can not say but it is a reality. 

Economic realities, at the moment whether it is f air or not, we  are in a 
si tuation of receiving deficit funding from the f ederal government, that the 
federal government has control of the resources of the Northwest Territories 
and so on. Now what I am suggesting, Mr. Braden, is not that we as a unity 
committee had to analyze all those factors and come to conclusi ons, but the 
people who f inally are going to choose divisi on or unity or whatever i t  is, 
these are some things they should be consideri ng, but I would not want to tell 
anybody that because your territory will onl y have 17, 000 people that you had 
better not establi sh your territory. That is a f act that they must be aware 
of, take into account and make their judgment on the basis of i t. They may 
feel there are other factors that are far more important and that outwei gh that. 

THE CHA I RMAN (Mr. Fraser ) :  Thank you, Mr. MacQuarri e. Page four, agreed? 
Hon. Mr. McCallum. 

Lives And Futures Of All Northerners 

HON. ARNOLD McCAL LUM: Mr. Chairman, i n  the thi rd last paragraph the committee 
indicates that we  must make explici t an understanding whi ch is already impl ici t 
in a number of its previous actions, " . . .  acknowledge the peculi ar si tuation · i n  the 
Territories which prevents the si mplisti c approach of 'we are al l northerners' 
from s 1 1 cceedinq where rolitical development is concerned. " I would like to 
ask any Member, maybe Mr. S ibbeston, if i n  f act when you met with the D ene 
Nation and the Metis Association, whether in f act they proposed to you the 
connotation of using northerners as being together because in the submissions 
that the D ene Nati on presented to thi s House they make mention in a number of 
areas about bei ng together, northerners, both native northerners, non-native 
northerners. They refer to the li ves and f utures of all northerners and on the 
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one hand you have t he committee saying you cannot use that simplistic ap proach 
by saying we are all nort herners and on the other hand we have the Dene Nation 
in their prop osal saying, " Yes, at least to my way of thinking, we can identify 
as being northerners" and I wonder if in fact they made t hat app roach t o  the 
committee. 

TH E CHAIRMAN (Mr. Fraser) :  Thank you, Hon. Mr. McCal lum. Mr. S ibbeston. 

MR. S IBBESTON: Mr. Mccallum, I do not think whether in your needs for the 
Dene Nation or the Metis Association they told us specifically that we should 
not use the terms or see people in the Nort h as being all northerners. I guess 
what we are saying here is that sometimes you can avoid dealing with the real 
issues t hat confront you by saying " We are all in it toget her" or " We are all 
the same. "  What we are saying here is th-at we must realize the fact that though 
we are all northerners we are different types of northerners, we have Dene, we 
have Metis, we have white people and we have I nuit people and that t his factor 
must be recognized in the future political set-up in the North here. I guess 
it was just an attempt to  avoid falling into the p itfall of just dealing with a 
p olitical situation in t he North by j ust glossing over everything by saying 
" We are all northerners. " I hope this help s you, b ut t hat is about all that 
I can answer. 

TH E CHAI RMAN (Mr. Fraser) :  Thank you, Mr. Sibbeston. Mr. McCallum. 

Idea Of Discrimination 

HON. ARNOLD McCALL UM: Mr. Chairman, I appreciate what Mr. S ibbest on has 
suggested because t hat is exactly what the report says. The report goes on 
in the next paragraph to say that that is what colonial p olicy was, t hat is 
it treat ed p eople differently based on race and in fact our BNA Act discriminates 
on the basis of race and in fact language. I would like to p ose the question to 
Mr. S ibbeston t hen, is he in realit y then trying to perpetuate the idea of 
discrimination on the basis of race, language, in other words, to perpetuate 
colonial p olicy? Is it not t ime that we do something different? 

TH E CHAIRMAN (Mr. Fraser): Thank you, Mr. McCallum. Mr. S ibbeston. 

MR. S IBBESTON: Does Mr. Mccallum say t hat we all become then like white people 
and speak E nglish and not be born brown or black and t hat we all come out the 
same, speak English the same way and live the same way? Just because you 
recognize that we are all not northerners, just because you say we do not all 
want to be seen as a bunch of nort herners does not mean t hat we are p rejudiced. 
I t  just means t hat we have to realize the reality of the fact that in t he North 
there are different native people and there are white people and you cannot 
just treat everybody t he same way. You just cannot prop ose to deal with 
everybody the same way and you cannot prop ose to set up a government on the 
basis t hat everybody is equal. People are different and people have different 
cultures and languages and t hese factors have to be accep ted or recognized in 
t he forms of government that are set up in t he Nort h and that is all we are 
saying. We do not mean to be  prejudicial at all, but just really asking you 
to be practical and realistic in recognizing the situation for what it is. 
The worst thing t hat one can do is to say that everybody is t he same in t he 
North, we are all northerners. It just avoids the issue of seeing people in 
the realit y for what it is. 

THE CHA I RMAN (Mr. Fraser): Thank you, Mr. S ibbeston. Mr. McCallum. 

U se Of The Term " Northerners" 

HO N .  ARNOLD McCALLUM: Mr. Chairman, Mr. Sibbeston posed a question whether I 
would suggest that everybody should all be white people. Not on your life. 
I do not suggest at all it should be any particular race. I am not going to 
have much to  do about making everybody the same in terms of race or religion, 
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but I am saying that simply by indicating that we belong to a g eog raphic area 
d oes not neg ate that there are different kind s of d ifferences in lang uag es, 
different pig ments of skin. Fine, I am not sugg esting that. I am questioning 
the use of th e term " northerners" bec ause on on e hand we had witnesses, an 
org aniz ation used the term and on the other hand we had a committee saying t hat 
we c annot use the term. I am not saying that everybod y is born equal . I know 
that. 

THE CHAIR MAN (Mr .  Fraser) : Thank you, Mr . McCallum. Mr . S tewart. 

HON. DON STEWART: I would just wish to take it a step further with Mr. S ibbeston 
and ask him if d own in the long term would it be d esirable that as far as the 
state and the plac e that a person lived that everybod y was equal. Is that not 
the long-term g oal? I realize that it c annot be d one tomorrow, but surel y when 
we put something in place here and when we are g oing to c hang e thing s, we want 
to c hang e them for the better and the only way it is ever g oing to g et better 
is a country or a plac e where everybod y is the same and equal, not the same 
colour and the same religion, but treated the same. Surely that must be a part 
of our end result of what we are looking for somewhere down the pipe . 

THE CHAIRMAN (Mr. Fraser) : Thank you, Mr. Stewart. Mr. S ibbeston. 

Long-t erm Goal Is Toward Equality 

MR . S IBBESTON: I appreciate your question and I think it is a very fair question. 
The long-term g oal is that everybod y in the North will be on the same basis 
regard less of race, culture and so forth, but between now and then we have to 
set up institutions and g overnments which will make that possible . S o  far the 
type of g overnment we have had in the North is a white g overnment. It is a 
white institution, a very complex system of g overnment and native people ac t 
at a severe d isadvantage. You have to have g rad e 1 2  or a university d eg ree 
to g et a job with the g overnment and native languages do  not mean a d amn thing 
to this g overnment. The only language that the g overnment has i s  English. 
So that has been the rule thus f ar and so native people have been at an extreme 
d isadvantag e. 

Now what we are talking about is setting up a g overnment in the North where 
native cultures, native ways of d oing thing s, native people have a better 
c hanc e of fitting into g overnment, and it is possible to d evelop such a system 
of g overnment. It will take some novel work. Certainly the usual system of 
setting up g overnment in the S outh will not work in the North and in the end 
and maybe in 20, 30 or 50 years from now if we d o  have a g ood g overnment 
everybod y should be on the same level. It d oes not mean we are all g oing to 
be staying . We will still have Dene people who speak their languag e. We will 
still have Inuit who will speak Inuit . We will have Eng lish people who speak 
English, but everybod y hopefully will be on the same l evel in regards to being , 
to feeling g ood , to having secure jobs, you kn ow, to having the same politic al 
rig hts. We will all be d ifferent but we will hopefully be a little bit c loser 
to being equal. 

---Applause 

THE CH AIRMAN (Mr. Fraser) : T hank you, Mr. S ibbeston. Any further c omments on 
pag e four? Mrs. S orensen. 

Two Separate Issues 

MRS . S OR ENS EN: Mr. S ibbeston, I am still a bit c onfused , because in that l ine 
that Mr. McCallum read out the word s ''political d evelopment" is mentioned and 
to me we are all northerners when we talk about public g overnment, that that may 
be simplistic but we are all northerners. With aborig inal c laims it is a 
d ifferent matter and it seems to me that we h ave been talking about two separate 
issues here, the d evelopment of a g overnment, a publ ic g overnment where we are 
all equal and aborig inal rights c laims where only those people of aborig inal 
d escent have special rights, so I am not sure what that line then really means. 
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THE CHAI RMAN (Mr. Fraser) : Thank you, Mrs. Sorensen. Mr. Sibbeston. 

MR. SIBBE STON: I g uess what it means is that as regards to political development 
it does not mean that native people will have maybe two votes as opposed to one 
vote for a white person. It does not mean that. It just means that in the 
political development, in the political institutions that will be set up these 
institutions will pay recognition to native people and that is all that means. 
It means that political development wil l occur, recog niz ing that people are 
different instead of lumping everybody in the same, under the slog an of " We are 
all northerners. " Maybe that is not as clear as it could be, but I think it is 
about as best as I can do and please ask someone else these questions. 

---Laughter 

THE CHAIRMAN (Mr. Fraser) : You are doing a fine job there Mr. Sibbeston. 
Any further questions on pag e four? Is it ag reed? Mr. Butters. 

HON. TOM BUTTERS: Just a point of order, when Members say " Ag reed" that just 
sig nifies that we have ag reed that there are no further questions to be asked 
on that pag e? It is not an acceptance of the pag e as such. 

AN HON. MEMBER: Ag reed. 

Page Four Of Unity Report, Agreed 

THE CHAIRMAN (Mr. Fraser) : Rig ht, my job is to g et all of these pages finished . 
Any further questions on pag e four? Is it agreed? 

---Ag reed 

Thank you. Pag e five. Mr. McCallum. 

HON. ARNOLD McCALLUM: Mr. Chairm an, pag e five of the committee report in the 
second parag raph, well, one, two and three, all three parag raphs I think lead 
to it. It talks about people acti ng in concert to achieve g oals where there 
was a natural i dentity based on race, lang uage, lifestyle, prompting these 
people to act in concert. I t  notes that the policies of the Government of 
Canada have recog nized and fostered the distinctiveness of indig enous people. 
I t  talks about the committee recog nizing however a further truth, that there 
is also a sig nif icant presence of " others" . And I g uess here and the -- well 
I am sorry I do not g et the next two words " predominantly white" ,  who have 
leg itimate aspirations and acknowledge the interests of these others who have 
demonstrated a commi tment to northern living , either born, raised here or who 
have resided in the Territories for five or more years. 

Five Years To Become A Northerner 

It g oes on in the thi rd paragraph whil e it is not customary within Canada to 
draw arbitrary distinctions of residency g reater than six months that that is 
done in the Northwest Territories but it says that visitors only averag e two 
or three years and the committee firmly believes that such people should not 
have the right to determine the fundamental shape of the Northwest Territories, 
so it is those people who have been in here for two or three years - - visitors. 
It takes three years as I understand it to become a Canadian citizen. Why then 
would the committee say five years? If in fact the Inuit, the Dene are 
Canadian, if it takes a Czechoslovakian, a Pakistani, a South American, a 
person f rom South America three years to become a Canadian citizen why in the 
Territories do we lend credence only to five years? 

THE CHAI RMAN { Mr. Fraser) : Thank you, Hon. Arnold McCallum. Mr. Sibbeston. 
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MR. S IBBES TON: My a nswer to you is that it is a matter of relativity. Maybe 
in the S outh, j ust a s  an exa m ple, when you dea l with Albertans a nd people that 
come into Alberta, you have g ot to recog nize that people in Alberta were there 
m aybe for j ust a bout 50 yea rs, the first orig ina l inhabitants like southern 
p eople ma ybe w ere in Alberta for 100 yea r s. S o  f i ve yea rs  w ould be too long 
r elative to this hundred yea rs  so you ca n have less, but i n  the North the 
original people have been here for thousa nds of yea rs, so what is five years? 
It i s  nothing . 

TH E CHAI RMAN (Mr. Fra ser ) :  Tha n k  you. 

MR. S IB B E S TON: Can you perha ps look a t  it tha t way? 

TH E CH AIRMAN (Mr. Fraser ) :  Thank you, Mr. S ibbeston. Mr. MacQua rrie. 

MR. MacQUARRIE : Thank you. Considering the length of terms that p eople use 
toda y a nd w e  did not have ha rd  statistics to ba se it on, a lthoug h w e  w ould have 
liked to have had, there a r e  many people who come a nd enj oy life in the North 
a nd find it a n  interesting experience a nd have every right to do so, but w ho do 
not have a pa rticula r commitment to living in the North a nd when w e  ta l k  about 
perha ps is there some period of time when it does seem that if people stay that 
lon g they ma y sta y a whole lot long er? We sort of felt that it was  somew her e 
a roun d f ive yea rs so that if someone had been here for that long there was  a 
g ood possibility that he would be here a g ood deal long er a nd that he would 
have to live w ith the con sequences of a ny funda menta l decisions that w er e  made 
about lifestyle. 

Intruding On A Well Established Lifestyle 

I wou ld sug g est that your analogy with southern Canada is simply n ot adequate 
a t  all, Mr. McCall um. A Czechoslovakian coming to Canada is a n  individual 
w ho is coming to a country that ha s a population of 23 million p eople with a 
w ell established lifestyle, a pattern of livin g .  H e  is not g oing to make much 
of a n  indenta tion on that at all, but the f a ct that yes that in the North w e  
d o  have a very small population a nd that the n umbers w ho come from elsewhere 
ca n have a sig nifica n t  impa ct on the lifestyl e of a n  a rea . I ma y j ust say that 
for me that is one of the thing s ,  the thing a bout a ll being northerners. I used 
to sa y that and it took me  some time to try to understand a different point of 
view and  one w a y  that I did understand it fina lly was  to sa y " I  live in 
Yellowknife. I ha ve a lifestyle that I enj oy. What suddenl y if 12 , 000 Scotsmen 
descended on the city? " We would be hearing a bout p orridg e a n d  f ootball a nd 
there w ould b e  H ig hland g a mes instea d of our Caribou Ca rnival or whatever, and 
I w ould suddenly feel uncomfortable in a n  a rea -- I am  of S cottish orig in but 
I do not have the brogue or whatever -- I w ould suddenly feel uncomfortable in 
a place that I consider to be my home. Mr. S ibbeston does n ot think it is 
maybe but I do and suddenly I am  losing control of my own life. 

Now, what difference if instea d  1 2, 000 S cotsmen it was  1 2, 000 Chinese? I do not 
mean tha t to be r a cia l in a ny sense except that they w oul d have even a fa r 
different lif estyle a n d  a different la ng ua g e  so suddenly I w ould be w a lkin g the 
streets of my own city, the n ewspapers a r e  different from what I a m  used to, the 
l a ng ua g e  is different from what I am used to. I would a lmost g o  insane. What 
I a m  sug g esting is with a sig nifica nt introduction of people from southern 
Canada to the North that must be how many native p eople feel a nd simply to sa y 
then that w e  need to take some a ccount of the fact that there a r e  people with 
sig nificant cha ra cteristics her e who care about their lifestyle r eg a rdless of 
wha t somebody else mig ht think about it. 

---Applause 

THE CHAIRMAN (Mr. Fra ser) : Thank you, M r .  Ma cQua rrie. I thin k w e  ha d better 
r ecognize the clock before those g uys come, 6 : 00 o'clock I g et off the cha ir. 

MR. S PEAKE R: Mr . Fraser . 
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REPORT OF THE COMMITTE E  OF THE WHOLE OF TABLED DOCUMENT 16 -80(2) : REPORT OF 
THE SPECIAL COMMI TTEE ON UNITY 

MR. FRASE R: Mr. Spea k er, your committee ha s been consi deri ng the speci al  
commi ttee on unity a nd wi shes to report progress. 

MR. SPEAKE R: Thank you. On setti ng the hours for tomorrow we wi ll start aga i n  
a t  1 : 00 o'cl ock. I would like to lea v e  the opti ons open for an ev ening si tti n g  
a nd tha t would be ba sed on the prem i se that the u ni ty deba te had been concluded. 
I ha ve  purposely held down the hours on the uni ty d ebate because I feel that i t  
i s  of such i mporta nce that people should be rested a nd be a ble to deal wi th thi s 
subj ect without getti ng themsel ves involved i n  a manner that mi ght not be 
becom i ng thi s House. I think you ca n do that very easi ly when ev erybody is 
ti red. That i s  the reason tha t I have not extended the si tti ng hours duri ng 
this debate. I would, however, tomorrow i n  case u ni ty i s  fi ni shed by 6 : 00 
o'clock, lea v e  the opti ons open to a nnounce an  eveni ng si tti ng a t  that ti me i f  
I hav e  your concurrence. 

SOME HON. MEMBERS: Ag reed. 

AN HON. MEMBER: Nay. 

MR. SPEAKER: I hear a " nay"  so we know the orders for tomorrow then. 
Mr. Clerk , are there a ny a nnouncements? 

CLERK OF THE H OUSE (Mr. Remnant): I ha v e  been a sk ed to rem i nd the educati on 
comm i ttee tha t they a re due a t  the Inukshuk studi o a t  7: 00 p. m. today. Ca ucus 
meeti ng tomorrow morning a t  9: 30 a t  the Uk ki v i k  students resi dence. The bus 
will be i n  front of the hotel a t  9: 15. 

MR. SPEAKER: The orders of the d a y, please. 

I TEM NO. 12: ORDERS OF THE DAY 

CLERK OF THE HOUSE (Mr. Remnant) : Orders of the day, November 4 ,  1 980, l : 00 
o'clock p. m . ,  a t  the Gordon Robertson Educa ti on Centre. 

l. Prayer 

2. Ora l Q uesti ons 

3. Questi ons a nd Returns 

4 .  Pet i t i ons 

5. Tabli ng of Documents 

6 .  Reports of Sta nd i ng a nd Speci a l  Commi ttees 

7. Noti ces of Moti on 

8. Moti ons 

9. Introducti on of Bi lls for Fi rst Reading 

10. Second Reading of Bills 

1 1. Consi derati on in Commi ttee of the Whole of Bi lls, Recommendati ons to the 
Legi slati v e  Assembly a nd Other Matters: Tabled Document 16-80(2); 
Moti on 20-80(2);  Inform a ti on Items l-80(2), 2-80(2), 4 -80(2), 5-80(2), 
6 -80(2) , 1 8-80(2) ; Ta bled Documents 6 -80(2), 1 2-80(2f; Bi l ls 3- 80(2), 
1 3-80( 2) , 7 -80(2) , 8-80(2), 9-80(2) , 1 0-80(21 ,  12-80(2) 

13. Orders of the Da y 

MR. SPEAKER: This House sta nds ad j ourned unti l l : 00 o'clock p. m. , Nov ember 4 ,  
1980, a t  the Gor don Robertson Educa ti on Centre. 

---ADJOURNMENT 
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